
1 

 

North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

 
O F F I C I A L    A G E N D A  

REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 
 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

 
7:30 P.M. 

 
NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE 
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE 
FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT 
OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR PERSON WITH 
DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, 
PLEASE CONTACT (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY 
SERVICE). 

    
1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
     
 ROLL CALL 
 
2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 
 

 1. CONSTITUTION WEEK (MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 
 2. CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH (MAYOR CONNIE 
  LEON-KREPS) 
 3. BLOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH – LEUKEMIA &  
  LYMPHOMA SOCIETY (MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 
            4. HARBOR ISLAND CLEAN UP DAY – MIAMI BEACH 

PAAL/FLORIDA NATIONAL UNIVERSITY BASKETBALL 
TEAM/NORMANDY GYM (COMMISSIONER ANDREANA  

  JACKSON) 
 5. SERGEANT KEVIN BEATY RETIREMENT 
 6. OFFICER AMY SUAREZ     
 7. SCOTT LEE 
 8. BRIYANNA LEMON 
 9. MICHELLE HENNINGER  
 



2 

 
 
 
 

 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
  1. MIAMI-DADE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD - TREASURE ISLAND 
   ELEMENTARY SCHOOL UPDATE 
 
 C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
3. GOOD & WELFARE 
 
4. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. ARTS, CULTURAL & SPECIAL EVENTS BOARD 
 
 B. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
  
 C. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 
 D. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
 
 E. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
 F. YOUTH & EDUCATION SERVICES BOARD 
 
5.     CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, RESOLVING THE MATTER OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 SPECIAL MASTER FINES IMPOSED AGAINST TOTB MIAMI LLC, 7525 
 EAST TREASURE DRIVE, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
 ATTORNEY ROBERT L. SWITKES) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will mitigate Code Enforcement fines imposed by the 

 Special Master. 
 
 B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO PIGGYBACK 
 ON AN EXISTING CITY OF MINNEOLA, FLORIDA, CONTRACT WITH 
 NATIONAL  JOINT POWERS ALLIANCE CO-OPERATIVE (NJPA), 
 PURSUANT TO SECTION 36.25(J) OF THE VILLAGE CODE, FOR THE 
 LEASE OF A GPS SYSTEM; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will authorize a 36-month lease agreement with Verizon 

 for a GPS System to manage the police vehicle fleet. 



3 

 
 
 
 
 
 C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE STATE LEGISLATURE’S EFFORTS TO 
 AMEND SECTION 403.7033, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO PROVIDE FOR 
 LOCAL REGULATION OF PLASTIC BAGS OR, ALTERNATIVELY, 
 FOR  THE REPEAL OF SAID STATUTORY SECTION SO THAT 
 LOCAL GOVERNMENTS ARE NO LONGER PREEMPTED FROM 
 ENACTING LEGISLATION REGULATING PLASTIC BAGS; 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 COMMISSIONER ANDREANA JACKSON) 
 
  The proposed Resolution supports an amendment to Section 403.733, Florida 

Statutes, for municipalities to regulate the use of plastic bags. 
 

D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, SUPPORTING LOWER ENERGY COSTS AND REMOVING 
 BARRIERS FOR SOLAR POWER; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VICE MAYOR JORGE GONZALEZ) 
  
 The proposed Resolution supports lowering energy cost and removing barriers for 
 the use of Solar Power. 
 

 E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE,  FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING A TURF AND 
 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT FUNDED 
 AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
 TRANSPORTATION FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE TURF AND 
 LANDSCAPED AREAS ON THE 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY 
 WITHIN THE VILLAGE LIMITS; PROVIDING FOR 
 COMPENSATION TO THE VILLAGE FOR SUCH SERVICES; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
 VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will authorize an agreement with the Florida 

 Department of Transportation for the Village to maintain the turf and 
 landscaped areas on the State road, within the Village. FDOT will reimburse 
 the Village at an annual fee of $2,836 for this work. 

 
 F. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
 AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY CLERK 
 OF COURTS FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE E-CITATION SYSTEM; 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
 MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLSON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will allow the Village to participate in the County’s  

 program to transfer citations electronically, as opposed to mailing the reports.  



4 

 
 
 
 
G. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, SUPPORTING THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY RESOLUTION 
 URGING THE UNITED STATES ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, THE 
 FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND 
 THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT TO 
 EXPEDITE PHASE 11 OF THE BISCAYNE BAY COASTAL WETLANDS 
 PROJECT; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY 
 MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 

 
  The proposed Resolution supports expediting Phase II of the Biscayne Bay Coastal 

Wetlands project, which will provide increased water storage in the wetlands east 
of the coastal ridge, which is expected to protect against saltwater intrusion and 
thereby increase resiliency against sea level rise in the southern Miami-Dade 
County. 

  
H.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A COLLECTIVE 
BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
AND THE FLORIDA STATE LODGE 81, FRATERNAL ORDER OF 
POLICE (FOP) FOR THE TERM OF OCTOBER 1, 2016 THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 REGARDING POLICE PERSONNEL; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VILLAGE  MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON)  

 
  The proposed Resolution will ratify an agreement concerning wages, benefits, and 

other terms and conditions of employment for police personnel from October 1, 
2016 through September 30, 2019. 

 
I.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING RENEWAL PRICING FOR THE VILLAGE 
GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM WITH AVMED, UNITED AND 
NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH FOR HEALTH, DENTAL, AND VISION 
INSURANCE FOR VILLAGE EMPLOYEES; AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY REQUIRED AGREEMENTS; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO IMPLEMENT THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ANY AGREEMENTS; AUTHORIZING 
THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK 
K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The proposed Resolution will authorize the Village Manager to accept the 

 renewal pricing for employees health, dental, and vision insurance with the 
 same provider  at a cost savings of $11,113. 

  
1.) Commission Action 

 
 



5 

 
 
 
6. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMISSION NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, AMENDING TITLE XIII OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 ENTITLED “GENERAL OFFENSES” BY CREATING CHAPTER 137, TO 
 BE ENTITLED “SEXUAL ORIENTATION OR GENDER IDENTITY 
 CHANGE EFFORTS,” TO PROHIBIT LICENSED PROFESSIONALS 
 FROM ENGAGING IN COUNSELING EFFORTS, PRACTICES, OR 
 TREATMENTS WITH THE GOAL TO CHANGE A MINOR'S SEXUAL 
 ORIENTATION OR GENDER IDENTITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL, 
 SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 

 
The proposed Ordinance seeks to prohibit licensed professionals from engaging in 
counseling efforts, practices, or treatments with the goal to change a minor’s sexual 
orientation or gender identity. 
 
1.) Commission Action 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING 
 
 A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING AN APPLICATION BY ANDRES MARQUEZ 
 FOR INSTALLATION OF A NEW BOATLIFT ON AN EXISTING DOCK 
 AT 7601 EAST TREASURE DRIVE, IN SLIP B-50, PROVIDING 
 FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
 PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; 
 PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
 B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING AN APPLICATION BY FILIPE LATA FOR 
 INSTALLATION OF A NEW BOATLIFT ON AN EXISTING DOCK AT 
 7601 EAST TREASURE DRIVE, IN SLIP C-103, PROVIDING FINDINGS, 
 PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
 CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
 VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

 
 
 

C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA,  APPROVING AN APPLICATION BY OMAR ROMERO 
 FOR  INSTALLATION OF A NEW BOATLIFT ON AN EXISTING 
 DOCK AT 7601 EAST TREASURE DRIVE, IN SLIP B-84, PROVIDING 
 FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
 PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; 
 PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
 FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

   
  1.) Commission Action 

 
D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, PERMITTING CONSTRUCTION OF A DOCK STRUCTURE, 
 GRANTING A WAIVER, PURSUANT TO SECTION 150.11(G) OF THE 
 VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
 DOCK WITH A BOATLIFT AT 1700 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE, , 
 WHICH WILL EXTEND BEYOND THE 25 FOOT LENGTH LIMIT; 
 PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
 REQUEST;  PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL;  PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
 AN  EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
 FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, PERMITTING CONSTRUCTION OF A DOCK STRUCTURE, 
 GRANTING A WAIVER, PURSUANT TO SECTION 150.11(G) OF THE 
 VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
 DOCK WITH A BOATLIFT AT 7700 MIAMI VIEW DRIVE, WHICH 
 WILL EXTEND BEYOND THE 25 FOOT LENGTH LIMIT; PROVIDING 
 FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
 PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; 
 PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 
 

  1.) Commission Action 
  
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
 A. NAMING A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF 

 THE MIAM BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (COMMISSIONER 
 RICHARD CHERVONY) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
 
 
 



7 

 
 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A.  SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL REPORT 
 
 B.  TREASURE ISLAND PARKING PLAN 
 
 C.  FEASIBILTY OF ELECTRONIC PROCESSING OF VISITOR PARKING 
   PASSES FOR HARBOR ISLAND 
 
 D.  COMMISSION COORDINATION OF VILLAGE SPONSORED EVENTS 
   (VICE MAYOR JORGE GONZALEZ) 
 
 E. FEASIBILITY OF ADOPTING MIAMI-DADE COUNTY’S LOCAL 

 ACTION PLAN FOR SAFER PEOPLE, SAFER STREETS (MAYOR 
 CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 

 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
 F. CITIZENS CRIME WATCH AWARDS DINNER (MAYOR CONNIE LEON-

 KREPS) 
 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
10. PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSION 
 
11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
12. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
13. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 A. Grant Writer’s Report 
 
14. FINANCE REPORT 
 
15. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 A. SPECIAL VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING – FY 16/17 
  BUDGET PRESENTATION 
 
 B. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – JUNE 14, 2016 
 
  1.) Commission Action 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 



2A1

Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



2A2

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



2A3

Page 7



Page 8



2B1

Page 9



5A

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



5B

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



5C

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



5D

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



5E

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



5F

Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
CLERK OF COURTS FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE E-CITATION 
SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Violations Bureau of the Miami-Dade County Clerk’s Office 

oversees the processing, collection, and disbursement of traffic citation revenues on behalf of all 
Miami-Dade County municipalities; and  

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to improve the efficiency of the traffic citation system, the 

Miami-Dade County Clerk’s Office has initiated a new e-citation system that allows the electronic 
transfer of all citations. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The above Recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 
 
 Section 2.   Authorization of Village Official: The Village Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute the attached Interlocal Agreement with the Miami-Dade County Clerk 
of Courts for the Village’s participation in the e-citation system; and take all actions necessary 
to implement the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 
 Section 3.   Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  

 
The foregoing Resolution was offered by ___________, who moved for its 

adoption.  This motion was seconded by _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the 
vote was as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



5G

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A COLLECTIVE 
BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE AND THE FLORIDA STATE LODGE 81, 
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE (FOP) FOR THE TERM 
OF OCTOBER 1, 2016 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
REGARDING POLICE PERSONNEL; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
FRANK K. ROLLSON) 

WHEREAS, through good-faith negotiations, an agreement has been reached 
between the Village Manager and the  Fraternal Order of Police regarding wages, 
benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment concerning police personnel 
to commence from October 1, 2016 through September 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Village’s Labor Counsel has approved said agreement as 
to form and legal sufficiency. 

WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement has been ratified by the 
membership of the Florida State Lodge 81, Fraternal Order of Police; and the 
Village Manager recommends that the Commission ratify the agreement on behalf 
of North Bay Village. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The foregoing whereas clauses and recitals are hereby ratified and 
confirmed and confirmed as being true, and the same are hereby made 
a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The collective bargaining agreement, attached hereto as “Exhibit 1” 
between North Bay Village and the Florida State Lodge 81, Fraternal 
Order of Police for the term of October 1, 2016 through September 
30, 2016 is hereby approved and incorporated by reference. 

Section 3. The collective bargaining agreement between North Bay Village and 
the Florida State Lodge 81, Fraternal Order of Police concerning 
police personnel shall be effective upon ratification, through 
September 30, 2019. 

5H

Page 133



 
 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 
The motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by _________, seconded by 
______________. 
 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  __________   
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez  __________ 
Commissioner Richard Chervony __________  
Commissioner Andreana Jackson __________  
Commissioner Eddie Lim  __________  

 

    PASSED and ADOPTED this 13th day of September 2016. 

 

____________________________ 

MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

        

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________ 

YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 

Village Clerk 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_______________________________ 

Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 

Village Attorney 
North Bay Village Resolution: Fraternal Order of Police Bargaining Agreement from October 1, 2016 through  

 September 30, 2016. 
 

 
 

Page 134



Page 135



1

Jenorgen Guillen

From: Frank Rollason
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 3:25 PM
To: Jenorgen Guillen (JGuillen@nbvillage.com)
Cc: Jenice Rosado
Subject: FW: NEED RATIFICATION APPROVAL FROM FOP

Importance: High

This document requested below should be added to the front of the Agreement once we receive it from the 
FOP, Frank. 

Frank Rollason, Village Manager 
North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Ste 300 
Tel: 305-756-7171 Ext 21 
Fax: 305-756-7722 
Mobile: 305-299-7300 
frollason@nbvillage.com 
www.nbvillage.com 

-----Original Message----- 
From: Mark Weinstein [mailto:foplodge81@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2016 3:05 PM 
To: Frank Rollason 
Cc: Joefop@aol.com 
Subject: Re: NEED RATIFICATION APPROVAL FROM FOP 

On its way sorry bout that computer went down will have it to in a few. 

Mark Weinstein  

> On Sep 6, 2016, at 2:08 PM, Frank Rollason <FRollason@nbvillage.com> wrote: 
>  
> Joe/Mark, we need a formal ratification approval by the FOP for the  
> Sept 13th Commission Meeting.  You can provide a scanned letter with  
> nothing more than a simple statement that a ratification vote was held  
> on Thursday, September 1, 2016 resulting in a favorable vote approving  
> the contract presented by the North Bay Village Administration for a  
> three year period beginning October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2019. 
> The agenda goes to print tomorrow so time is of the essence, thanks,  
> Frank. 
>  
> Frank Rollason, Village Manager 
> North Bay Village 
> 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Ste 300 
> Tel: 305-756-7171 Ext 21 
> Fax: 305-756-7722 
> Mobile: 305-299-7300 
> frollason@nbvillage.com 
> www.nbvillage.com 

Page 136



Fraternal Order of Police 
President, Mark Weinstein      Vice-President, Rey Marabotto 

Frank Rollason, Village Manager 
North Bay Village, Florida 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, suite 300 
North Bay Village Fla. 33141 

September 6th, 2016 

Frank, 

I would like to take this opportunity to officially notify you and the Village that the fine Men and Women 
of the police department in a democratic process overwhelmingly approved of the proposed collective 
bargaining agreement as given by you. FOP Representative Joe Puleo and I as you know held a vote on 
Thursday September 1st, 2016 at North Bay Village in which the vote went in favor of the NBV police 
contract. The entire Police Department will await the ratification of this contract at the next Village 
commission meeting to be held this month.  

Thank you, the Mayor and Commissioners in advance for working with us to achieve this contract. The 
Officers of North Bay Village know that their hard work, dedication and loyalty have not gone un-
noticed! 

On behalf of the North Bay Village Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge 81, thank you again. 

Mark Weinstein, President
Fraternal Order of Police 
Lodge 81       
North Bay Village Florida 

Lodge 81, North Bay Village Florida, “Three Island Paradise” 

Page 137



i 

CCOOLLLLEECCTTIIVVEE  BBAARRGGAAIINNIINNGG  AAGGRREEEEMMEENNTT  

bbeettwweeeenn  tthhee  mmuunniicciippaalliittyy  ooff  

NNOORRTTHH  BBAAYY  VVIILLLLAAGGEE  

aanndd  tthhee  

FFLLOORRIIDDAA  SSTTAATTEE  LLOODDGGEE  8811,,  

FFRRAATTEERRNNAALL  OORRDDEERR  OOFF  PPOOLLIICCEE  

EEffffeeccttiivvee  OOccttoobbeerr  11,,  22001166  tthhrruu  SSeepptteemmbbeerr  3300,,  22001199  

Page 138



ii 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PREAMBLE 1................................................................................................................................1 

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION ......................................................................................................2 

ARTICLE 2 NON-DISCRIMINATION ......................................................................................3 

ARTICLE 3 DUES CHECK-OFF ................................................................................................4 

ARTICLE 4 UNION REPRESENTATIVES ...............................................................................5 

ARTICLE 5 SERVICES TO THE UNION ..................................................................................6 

ARTICLE 6 PERSONNEL RECORDS ................................................................................... 7-8 

ARTICLE 7 BILL OF RIGHTS & RELATED MATTERS .................................................. 9-10 

ARTICLE 8 SHIFTS AND SHIFT EXCHANGES ............................................................. 11-12 

ARTICLE 9 VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT. ................................................................... 13-16 

ARTICLE 10 PROMOTIONS / APPOINTMENTS .............................................................. 17-20 

ARTICLE 11 TRAINING ...................................................................................................... 21-22 

ARTICLE 12 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE ........................................................................23 

ARTICLE 13 GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE .................................... 24-27 

ARTICLE 14 LEGAL PROTECTION.........................................................................................28 

ARTICLE 15 HOLIDAYS ...........................................................................................................29 

Page 139



iii 
 

ARTICLE 16 SICK LEAVE .................................................................................................. 30-32 

ARTICLE 17 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ....................................................................................33 

ARTICLE 18 LEAVE OF ABSENCE .........................................................................................34 

ARTICLE 19 VACATION TIME .......................................................................................... 35-37 

ARTICLE 20 EXTRA-DUTY POLICE EMPLOYMENT ..........................................................38 

ARTICLE 21 INSURANCE BENEFITS .....................................................................................39 

ARTICLE 22 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE ..........................................................................40 

ARTICLE 23 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME ......................................................... 41-43 

ARTICLE 24 COMPENSATION .......................................................................................... 44-46 

ARTICLE 25 UNIFORMS, SAFETY AND EQUIPMENT .................................................. 47-48 

ARTICLE 26 PHYSICAL EXAM & WORKERS COMP. BENEFITS................................ 49-50 

ARTICLE 27 SENIORITY AND LAYOFF ................................................................................51 

ARTICLE 28 LIABILITY IN AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT ......................................................52 

ARTICLE 29 DEPARTMENTAL RULES AND REGULATIONS ...........................................53 

ARTICLE 30 SAFETY STANDARDS .......................................................................................54 

ARTICLE 31 PREVAILING RIGHTS (PAST PRACTICE): .....................................................55 

ARTICLE 32 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS & SCOPE OF AGREEMENT ..................................56 

Page 140



iv 
 

ARTICLE 33 SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYMENT ...........................................................................57 

ARTICLE 34 SEVERABILITY CLAUSE ..................................................................................58 

ARTICLE 35 LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ...........................................................59 

ARTICLE 36 RETIREMENT BENEFITS...................................................................................60 

ARTICLE 37 ALCOHOL AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE ............................................ 61-64 

ARTICLE 38 NO STRIKE PROVISION ....................................................................................65 
 

ARTICLE 39 DURATION OF AGREEMENT ...........................................................................66 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



1 
 

PREAMBLE 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by North Bay Village, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Village” and the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of Police, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Union” for the purpose of promoting harmonious relations between the Village and Union, to 

establish an orderly and prompt procedure for the resolution of grievances, to insure continuation 

of normal activities and departmental operations, to settle differences which might arise and to 

set forth the basic and full agreement between the parties concerning rates of pay, wages, hours 

of work and all other conditions of employment. 

Page 142



2 
 

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION 

The Village hereby recognizes the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of Police as the 

exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours and 

terms and conditions of employment for all employees in the bargaining unit.  The certification 

by the Florida Public Relations Commission, Certification No. 1704 and as a result thereof, the 

Village recognizes the Union (FOP) as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of all 

sworn officers in North Bay Village as stated below.  All permanent full time sworn police 

personnel of the rank of police officer, police corporal, police sergeant, and police lieutenant 

including probationary employees but excluding all other employees of North Bay Village. 

Page 143



3 
 

ARTICLE 2 - NON-DISCRIMINATION 

There shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint, or coercion by the Village or the Union 

against any employee because of any classification protected by federal, state or local law.  All 

references to employees in this Agreement designate both sexes and wherever the male gender is 

used it shall be construed to include male and female employees. 

Page 144



4 
 

ARTICLE 3 - DUES CHECK-OFF 

3.1 Any member of the Union, who has submitted a properly executed authorization 

card or statement to the Village Manager or his designee in accordance with a format prescribed 

or approved by the Village may, by request in writing have his membership dues in the Union 

deducted from his wages.  Dues shall be deducted each pay period, and shall, thereafter, be 

transmitted to the Union.  However, the Village shall have no responsibility or liability for any 

monies once sent to the Union, nor shall the Village have any responsibility or any liability for 

the improper deduction of dues.  Further, the Union shall hold the Village harmless for non-

intentional errors in the administration of the dues deduction system. 

3.2 It shall be the responsibility of the Union to notify the Village Manager or his 

designee in writing of any change in the amount of dues to be deducted at least thirty (30) days 

in advance of said change.  Under no circumstances shall the Village be required to deduct 

Union fines, penalties, or assessment from the wage of any member. 

3.3 Any member of the Union may, on thirty (30) days written notice to the Village 

and the Union, request the Village to cease deducting dues from his wages. 

Page 145



5 
 

ARTICLE 4 - UNION REPRESENTATIVES 

4.1 The Village will recognize Union representatives from within the bargaining unit, 

appointed by the Union, and provided to management, whose duties shall be to process formal 

grievances from members of the bargaining unit and represent employees, upon request, at 

internal investigation interviews.  One such representative will be allowed to accomplish the 

above-described tasks on duty time without loss of pay or benefits with permission of the 

Department.  The Union will provide the name of the representative in writing to the Village 

Manager and copy the Chief of Police within ten (10) business days of said change.  Such 

permission should not be unreasonably withheld. 

4.2 One member of the Union’s bargaining team will be allowed time off, without 

loss of pay, to attend sessions which have been scheduled to renegotiate this Agreement. A 

Second member of the Union will be allowed to attend the sessions without loss of pay as long as 

the attendance of the Second person does not result in overtime coverage expense for the Village. 

The Second member prior to the scheduled bargaining meeting date shall coordinate their 

schedule and receive approval from their supervisor prior to attending bargaining session.   Prior 

to the commencement of such negotiations, the Union shall receive permission from the Chief of 

Police as to which bargaining team members will be allowed such time off. 

Page 146



6 
 

ARTICLE 5 - SERVICES TO THE UNION 

5.1 The Village will furnish the Union a copy of Police Department Rules and 

Regulations, and changes pertaining thereto. 

5.2 The Village will allow the Union and its representatives reasonable use of the 

meeting facility at the Police Station or Village Hall for the conducting of Union business when 

such facility is not in normal use, upon reasonable notice in the form of a  written request 

therefor to the Village Manager or his designee. 

5.3 The Village will furnish the Union with sufficient bulletin board space, for only 

Union notices relating to official business of the Union and/or contract administration, in or near 

the Squad Room. 

5.4 The Village will allow the Union to distribute mail and other communications 

within Village facilities. 

5.5 Upon written request by the Union, the Village will provide, on an annual basis, a 

complete roster of the bargaining unit, including name, rank, address, telephone number, social 

security number and current pay scale.  The Village will notify the Union on an interim basis of 

permanent changes within thirty (30) days as to name, rank and employment status. 

Page 147



7 
 

ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL RECORDS 

6.1 Employees covered by this Agreement shall have the right to inspect their official 

personnel files with three (3) business days notice at a time agreeable to the Human Resources 

Director.  The employee shall have the right to make duplicate copies of any items in his 

personnel, at no cost to the employee.  Those shall be the only official personnel files maintained 

for each employee. If a public records request is made for an employee file, the employee will  

be notified that such request on their file has been made. However, the name of the requestor is 

not to be divulged to the employee.  

6.2 Employees shall have the right to add to their personnel records written refutation 

of any document or information contained therein which is considered by the employee to be 

derogatory or to contain incorrect or insufficient information within a reasonable time frame of 

the entry in the personnel record. 

6.3 All personnel records of the employees shall be kept confidential to the extent 

provide by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

6.4 The Union and the Village agree that the names and/or photographs of bargaining 

unit members may be used in the Village’s newsletter, electronic mail, and the website when 

recognizing accomplishments or with other non-derogatory news items. 

6.4.1 Except as authorized in paragraph 6.4 above, neither the news media nor any 

other person will be directly furnished with the home address, telephone number, social security 

number or photograph of any employee or relatives without his express written consent.  Certain 

employee information is in the public domain controlled by the employee and the Village cannot 

be responsible for any of those disclosures. 

Page 148



8 
 

6.5 Reprimands and formal counseling’s shall be removed from their personnel file 

by the Village and placed in a separate file one (1) year from the date received by the employee.  

However, such reprimands and/or counseling’s may be used in future discipline proceedings and 

may be subject to public records requests. 

Page 149



9 
 

ARTICLE 7 - BILL OF RIGHTS & RELATED MATTERS 

7.1 The Village agrees to abide by the requirements contained in the Law 

Enforcement Officer’s Bill of Rights as set forth in Section 112.531 Florida Statutes, including 

any and all subsequent revisions thereto, and that said statute is incorporated herein by reference. 

7.2 Prior to filing a disciplinary charge which is prompted by a citizen complaint, the 

Village shall obtain a sworn complaint affidavit as to the exact allegations against the officer. 

7.3 In the interest of internal security and fairness to the employee under 

investigation, the Village, insofar as is legally permissible, agrees to make no conclusionary 

statements concerning the validity of the allegations under investigation until such time as the 

investigation has been completed.  In the event the employee under investigation, or any 

organization or person representing said employee make public statements concerning the 

allegations under investigation, the Village shall have the right to respond in any manner it 

deems appropriate.  Violation of this provision shall not prejudice the Village’s right to continue 

the investigation and action thereunder. 

7.4 No employee will be compelled by the Village to speak or testify before, or be 

questioned by any non-governmental agency unless under proper subpoena. 

7.5 The Village agrees that no adverse action will be taken against any employee who 

exercises the rights provided for in this Article. 

7.6 Not sustained or unfounded letters of complaint from citizens will not be inserted 

into an officer’s personnel records. . 

7.7 The Charge of “conduct unbecoming” and all similar vague charges will not be 

used by the Village unless further substantiated by specific charges. 

Page 150



10 
 

7.8 Should disciplinary action result from an internal investigation, an employee may, 

at the option of the Chief of Police, be allowed to use compensatory or vacation time to satisfy a 

suspension. 

7.9 In the event an employee is under criminal investigation by any criminal justice 

agency, the Chief of Police will have the option of placing an internal affairs investigation 

involving the same or related conduct in abeyance until the conclusion of the criminal 

investigation. If such abeyance is instituted, the time shall toll until the criminal investigation is 

concluded.  

7.9.1 The internal affairs investigation against such employee may, at the option of the 

Chief of Police, remain in abeyance if criminal prosecution is initiated against such employee.  

Criminal prosecution is considered “initiated” once an indictment is handed down or a criminal 

information is filed alleging any criminal conduct. 

Page 151



11 
 

ARTICLE 8 - SHIFTS AND SHIFT EXCHANGES 

8.1 The Village agrees to continue the shift bidding procedure for all employees who 

hold the ranks of police officer and police sergeant and Police Lieutenant, including Corporals.  

Work assignments for Lieutenants are at the discretion of the Chief. Shift bids shall  two (2) 

times per year. The first shift bid of the year shall occur during the month of February in order to 

begin the new shift on the first day of the first pay period in March. The second (2) shift bid shall 

occur during the month of August in order to begin the new shift on the first day of the first pay 

period in September.    Shift bids shall be conducted on seniority within rank / appointment 

basis.  It is understood and agreed by the parties that all aspects of the shift bidding procedure 

shall be subject to operational necessities of the Department, as determined by the Police Chief. 

8.2 Upon application in writing to the Chief of Police, employees may exchange 

shifts, provided that: 

a. The shift exchange is between employees of like rank and experience. (i.e. 

Corporals and Sergeants can exchange with any rank as long as another 

supervisor is already on duty for the shift(s) in questions and the exchange 

does not generate any cost as a result of the exchange. 

b. A shift exchange request must be submitted Three (3) days prior to the 

start of the requested shift exchange for weekday submissions and Five (5) 

days prior to the start of the requested shift exchange if the submission is 

done within a holiday or weekend. The Shift exchange request must be 

made in writing, signed by both employees and submitted to the Chief of 

Police in accordance with the above stated timeframes 

 c. No costs shall be incurred by the Village because of the exchange. 

Page 152



12 
 

 d.  The two shifts to be exchanged shall exist in the same pay period. 

8.3 Approval for shift exchange shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

            8.4 The employees who requested the Shift exchange must adhere to such change if 

approved or will be disciplined for not adhering to an approved shift exchange.  

8.5 If possible, the Village will notify the Employee at least Ten (10) calendar days  

in advance of any contemplated change in an employee’s status e.g., transfer, 

reassignment or change in shift.  This does not include the placement of an employee on 

Administrative Leave. A departmental needed change of shift will be done with the 

following criteria: request a volunteer to change shift, if no volunteer comes forward then 

it will accomplished in a reverse seniority order. This process may initiate a trickle-down 

effect, possibly affecting other officer’s existing shift placement.  

8.6 Whenever a shift rotation occurs, the Village shall use its best efforts to arrange 

that no member of the bargaining unit will be forced to work a contiguous shift.  Such 

shift rotation shall be arranged, unless operational necessity dictates otherwise, so that 

each member of the bargaining unit will receive at least eight (8) hours off-duty before 

returning to work. 

Page 153



13 
 

ARTICLE 9 - VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT. 

9.1 The Village will make a good faith effort to maintain police vehicles and 

equipment in proper working order. 

9.2 The Village shall, insofar as possible, equip its marked patrol vehicles with 

rotating emergency lights, siren, alley light, two-way mobile radio, department approved 

firearms and ammunition, first-aid kit and fire extinguishers, cases and appropriate firearm 

mounts. 

9.3 Unless Department firearms are provided, police officers shall have the option of 

using personal department approved firearms on duty under the following conditions: 

9.3.1   The department manual shall set forth the manufacturers and models for the 

approved firearms to be used. 

9.3.2 The officer must attend firearms training as provided for in Article 11.3 - 

Training. 

9.3.3 The officer must qualify and demonstrate proficiency with the firearm.  Only after 

inspection of the firearm by the range officer and qualification with the firearm, will the officer 

be permitted to carry such firearm on duty. 

9.3.4 The Village will supply each officer with sufficient ammunition to qualify 

annually with his/her on-duty and approved off-duty firearm (to include at least one preparation 

session at the range with each firearm). 

9.3.5 If the Village deems necessary for the officer to perform their work appropriately 

and more efficiently, the Village will provide the officer with either a Village issued cell phone 

or a cell phone stipend at the discretion of the Village. If the Village chooses to provide the 

Page 154



14 
 

stipend, Lieutenants & detectives will receive $75.00 monthly cell phone stipend and sergeants, 

corporals and any designated officers by the chief of police will receive $40.00 monthly.  

 

9.4 Take-Home Vehicle Program: All officers on the Field Training Program or 

Administrative Leave shall not be eligible to participate in the Take-Home Vehicle Program.  

9.4.1 Take-Home Vehicle Program: In an effort to reduce costs to the Village in 

maintenance, repairs, fuel, accidents and liability, the Village will charge officers who are 

provided a take home vehicle a bi-weekly fee which is determined by the amount of miles 

traveled from the officer’s residence to the North Bay village Police Station (portal to portal). 

The utilization of the take home vehicle is primarily intended for portal to portal; however, there 

are other allowed usages for errands, etc., therefore, officers should refer to the SOP for 

particular rules regarding allowed usage of the take home vehicle (SOP rules as revised in March 

2014). The amount of miles from portal to portal will be calculated through map quest.  The bi-

weekly charge will be automatically deducted from the officer’s paycheck.  Should the officer 

decide to stop participating in this program or change residence, the officer must notify the Chief 

of Police in writing immediately who will then notify the Finance and Human Resource 

Department, who will have two (2) weeks to implement any change.   

 

This take home vehicle program charges will be implemented using the following terms: 

Current Employees: 

 1-12 miles from residence to Police Station: $24.23 bi-weekly charge  

 13-17 miles from residence to Police Station: $28.84 bi-weekly charge 

 18-22 miles from residence to Police Station: $33.46 bi-weekly charge  

Page 155



15 
 

 23-27 miles from residence to Police Station: $38.07 bi-weekly charge  

 28+ miles from residence to Police Station: $42.69 bi-weekly charge  

 

 

Employees Hired After Ratification:  

 1-12 miles from residence to Police Station: $34.23 bi-weekly charge  

 13-17 miles from residence to Police Station: $38.84 bi-weekly charge 

 18-22 miles from residence to Police Station: $43.46 bi-weekly charge  

 23-27 miles from residence to Police Station: $48.07 bi-weekly charge  

 28-32 miles from residence to Police Station: $52.69 bi-weekly charge 

 33 – 37 miles from residence to Police Station: $57.31 bi-weekly charge  

 38 – 42 miles from residence to Police Station: $61.96 bi-weekly charge  

 43+ miles from residence to Police Station: $70.00 bi-weekly charge  

 

9.4.2 Except as expressly provided by law, injuries sustained by officers driving an 

assigned vehicle off-duty shall not be considered an on-the-job injury. 

 

 9.4.3 For employees hired after the ratification of this Agreement, the take-home 

vehicle program shall be available only for those employees who reside in Miami-Dade, Monroe, 

Broward and Palm Beach counties. 

 

 

 

Page 156



16 
 

 

 

 9.4.4 The employee will be required to obtain Rider Insurance for their take home 

vehicle at the employee’s cost. This insurance shall meet the minimum required coverage as 

stated by Florida law. A copy of said policy shall be provided to the office of the Chief of Police 

as soon as obtained and copies of renewals shall be furnished as they take place. Employees who 

do not provide proof of Rider Insurance will not be eligible to participate in the Take Home 

Vehicle Program.  

 

Page 157



17 
 

ARTICLE 10 – PROMOTIONS/APPOINTMENTS 

10.1 Whenever a budgeted promotional vacancy exists in a police sergeant 

classification, the Village shall fill such vacancy within thirty (30) days from an existing 

eligibility list with more than one name. 

10.2 In the event that there is an existing eligibility list with one name or more, but less 

than three names, the Village shall have the option of promoting from the eligibility list or 

announcing a new promotional examination in accordance with the procedures set forth in this 

Article. 

10.3 The Village will announce promotional examinations at least ninety (90) calendar 

days in advance of said examination.  All examination eligibility lists shall remain in existence 

for a period of two (2) years (except as provided in section 10.2, above. If a budgetary vacancy 

exists in the rank of sergeant or there are only two names remaining on the final posting of 

results, the Village shall have the option of announcing a new promotional examination in 

accordance with this article or at least ninety (90) calendar days before the expiration date of the 

current eligibility list.  The Village will list the areas which the examination will cover and the 

source from which the examination is drawn.  The Village will insure that such reference 

material is available commercially on a local basis. 

10.4 The Sergeants examination shall be restricted to non-probationary police officers 

and corporals with a minimum of five (5) years full-time service as a sworn law enforcement 

officer with North Bay Village and has not been the subject of a disciplinary suspension or 

demotion  for the last year immediately preceding application for promotion.  

10.5 At the time a new promotional examination is given, all eligible employees who 

wish to be on the new list must take the new examination.  No employee will be placed on the 

Page 158



18 
 

new list as a result of previous test scores.  The passing score for the promotional examination 

will be clearly stated prior to the administration of said examination. 

10.6 Each promotional examination may be made up of multiple components, 

including but not limited to a written examination; and in-box; and assessment center or other 

similar testing components that are used in law enforcement, including an oral interview panel.  

Each examination may also include an oral interview with the Police Chief.  The components of 

each examination and the value of each component shall be determined by the Police Chief, and 

shall be listed on the examination announcement. Employees shall receive one-half (1/2) 

seniority percentage point for each year of departmental service over the minimum requirement 

necessary to take the examination up to a limit of 5 percentage points (5%). Seniority points can 

only be added to a passing score;  they cannot be used to achieve a passing score.  

10.7 A list of eligible candidates shall be ranked in the order of their final cumulative 

score (candidates with a tie score may share a rank). Tie scores shall be broken by, first, date of 

employment and second by date of employment application.  All employees shall be notified of 

their scores.  The list shall remain valid for the period of two years from the date of posting of 

the results. 

10.8 Promotions shall be made from the candidates in the top three (3) ranked 

positions on the list. 

10.9 Officers promoted to the next higher rank will receive appropriate formal training 

during the twelve (12) month probationary period at an accredited criminal justice institute. 

10.10 Employees covered by this Agreement who are temporarily assigned to the rank 

of Sergeant, Lieutenant or Chief for at least one (1) full shift shall receive 5% over their present 

Page 159



19 
 

salary for the time spent working in the higher rank or temporary appointment.  Temporary 

assignments shall not include temporary assignments to the rank of corporal. 

10.11 Bargaining unit members appointed to the position / rank of corporal shall be 

provided with a 3% pay increase.  This position will not be a promotion, but instead an 

appointment made at the discretion of the Chief of Police.  All individuals appointed to this 

position will remain bargaining unit members.  Removal from the corporal position during the 

first year of the appointment shall not be subject to grievance or arbitration under Article 13.  

After the first year of the appointment to the position / rank of corporal, the Village will either 

discontinue the position / rank of corporal or provide those the corporal with permanent status.  

Corporals who obtain permanent status may not have that position removed from them without 

just cause.  Once permanent status is obtained, removal from the position of Corporal will be 

subject to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure under Article 13 of this agreement. The 

officers who are appointed to the rank of corporal at the time of ratification of this contract will 

have the ability to achieve permanent status on October 1, 2016.  

Appointment to rank Lieutenant:   The Village agrees to create the position / rank of Lieutenant.  

Bargaining unit members appointed to the rank of Lieutenant will remain bargaining unit 

members.  All individuals appointed to the rank of Lieutenant shall be placed on the first step of 

the lieutenant pay scale. . The position of Lieutenant is not a promotion, but instead an 

appointment made at the discretion of the Chief of Police.  Removal from the Lieutenant’s 

position during the first year of the program shall not be subject to grievance or arbitration under 

Article 13.  After the first year from the date of appointment to Lieutenant, the Village will either 

discontinue the rank of Lieutenant or provide those Lieutenants with permanent status.  

Lieutenants who obtain permanent status may not have that position removed from them without 

Page 160



20 
 

just cause.  Once permanent status is obtained, removal from the position of Lieutenant will be 

subject to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure under Article 13 of this Agreement. 

10.12 Corporals and Lieutenants who are removed from their apppointments under article 10.11 

shall revert to their immediate past held rank from which they were appointed. Any demotions of 

this nature may affect other officers in the department through bumping rights.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 161



21 
 

ARTICLE 11 - TRAINING 

11.1 The Village agrees that employees should be fully informed on any newly 

published material within the department’s possession which falls within the enforcement 

responsibility of the Village.  Therefore, the Shift Commander shall be responsible to convey 

newly published information within the department’s possession regarding Village and County 

ordinances and State Statutes to employees.  In addition to the foregoing, the employee shall 

have a continuing duty to keep himself informed as to all departmental rules, ordinances and 

other matters relevant to his job performance to which he has access. 

11.2 The Village shall provide at least forty (40) hours of training every four (4) years 

during duty hours, for the purpose of improving the performance of employees.  Such training 

will comply with requirements set by the Florida Criminal Justice Standards and Training 

Commission. 

11.3 The Village shall attempt to provide weapons training for all employees, but in no 

event will such training be less than once annually.  This training is in addition to the training 

provided under paragraph 11.2.  Upon qualification and a demonstration of proficiency, 

employees shall be permitted to carry on duty, semi-automatic weapons which have been 

approved by the Department and in accordance with Article 9.3.  The department will make 

every reasonable effort to facilitate the employee attending the firearms range during his normal 

working hours.  In the event the department is unable to schedule the employee to attend the fire 

range during his normal working hours, the employee shall be required to attend the firing range 

during his off-duty hours; provided, however, that the actual time spent by the employee in 

acquiring such training during his off-duty hours shall be compensated in accordance with the 

hours and overtime provisions contained herein. 

Page 162



22 
 

11.4 Where the department requires any employee to attend supervisory training and/or 

training in specialized police techniques, the department will make every reasonable effort to 

facilitate the employee attending such training during his normal working hours.  In the event the 

department is unable to schedule the employee to attend such training during his normal hours, 

the employee shall be required to attend such training during his off-duty hours; provided, 

however, that the time spent by the employee in such training during his off-duty hours shall be 

compensated in accordance with the Hours and Overtime provisions herein. 

11.5 In the event that an employee requests to be sent to a given training program, or in 

the event that the department asks for a volunteer or volunteers to attend any given training 

program (i.e., the department does not require any employee to attend such training program,) 

compensation relative to attendance at such training program shall be as mutually agreed upon 

between the employee or employees involved, the Chief of Police, and the Village Manager. 

Page 163



23 
 

ARTICLE 12 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

12.1 Employees shall not be dismissed or disciplined resulting in loss of pay or 

benefits except for just cause.  Employees may appeal such action by filing a written grievance 

with the Chief as is provided in Article 13, provided however, that there shall be no right to 

arbitrate discipline if it is in the form of written reprimand.  In cases of written reprimand, the 

final authority to determine the merits of the grievance rests with the Village Manager; provided 

however, that a due process hearing before the Village Manager or his designee, if requested, 

shall be granted. 

12.2 Members of the bargaining unit shall be excluded for one (1) year after their 

appointment as probationary employees from any right of review under the provisions of this 

Article or the grievance/arbitration procedures of Article 13 for any matter or grievance 

involving discipline, discharge or termination. Members appointed / promoted to corporal or 

Sergeant shall be excluded for one (1) year after their appointment or promotion as  corporals or 

sergeants from any right of review under the provisions of this Article or the 

grievance/arbitration procedures of Article 13 for any matter or grievance concerning their 

failure to successfully complete their probationary period. 

Page 164



24 
 

ARTICLE 13 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE 

13.1 The following grievance and arbitration procedure shall cover matters bearing 

upon discipline or discharge (except as otherwise provided in Article 12) and any other specific 

matter bearing upon grievances arising out of the application or interpretation of this Agreement.  

This is the only grievance procedure that can be utilized by an employee covered by this 

contract. 

13.2 A grievance shall be defined as an alleged violation of the interpretation or 

application of the specific terms of this Agreement.  Only the Union may file a grievance on 

behalf of a member of the bargaining unit, a group of members of the bargaining unit, or the 

union itself.  This grievance procedure and the arbitration shall be exclusive to the FOP, 

therefore, subject to Sections 447.401 Florida Statutes or other applicable laws, no bargaining 

unit member may file a grievance or request arbitration without the written authorization form 

the Union.  Subject to the provisions contained herein, the arbitrator shall have the jurisdiction 

and authority to decide a grievance as defined in this Article, and to enforce complaint with the 

terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

13.3 Any grievance involving discipline or discharge (except as provided in Article 12) 

shall be filed directly at Step 2 with the Police Chief within ten (10) calendar days of the written 

notification of the discipline or discharge.  Such disciplinary or discharge grievances shall be 

thereafter processed in accordance with the provisions of Article 13. 

Page 165



25 
 

 13.4 All grievances must be processed within the time limits provided unless extended 

by mutual agreement in writing.  Should the grievant not process the grievance within the 

timeframes, the grievance will be null and void and will not longer be qualified to proceed to 

Arbitration. 

 13.5 All grievances shall be processed in accordance with the following procedures: 

Step 1: The aggrieved employee shall discuss the grievance with his supervisor within ten 

(10) calendar days of the occurrence or knowledge of the occurrence which gave rise to this 

grievance.  If the event(s) which gave rise to the grievance occurred at a time when the employee 

was on annual leave, sick leave, or other authorized leave, the ten (10) calendar day period shall 

commence running immediately upon the employee return from such authorized leave. 

  The Union Representative may be present to represent the employee.  The supervisor 

shall attempt to correct the problem or respond to the employee within ten (10) calendar days. 

  Where a grievance is general in nature in that it applies to a number of employees having 

the same issue to be decided, it shall be presented directly at Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure 

within the time limits provided for the submission of the grievance in Step 1 and signed by the 

aggrieved employee or the Union Representative on their behalf. 

All grievances must be processed within the time limits provided unless extended by 

mutual agreement in writing. 

In the event the Union Representative signs said grievance, the employee’s name will be 

listed on the grievance; however, no grievance may be filed on behalf of any employee without 

the employee’s consent. 

Step 2: If the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved, the aggrieved employee and 

the Union Representative, if so requested by the employee, shall reduce the grievance to writing, 

Page 166



26 
 

on a standard form provided for this purpose and present such written grievance to the Chief of 

Police or his designee within ten (10) calendar days from the time the supervisor’s response was 

due in Step 1.  The Chief of Police or his designee shall meet with the employee and the Union 

Representative within fifteen (15) calendar days.  The Chief or his designee shall respond, in 

writing, seven (7) calendar days from the date of the meeting. 

Step 3: If the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved in Step 2, the employee may 

present a written appeal to the Village Manager or his/her designee within ten (10) calendar days 

from the time the response was due in Step 2.  The Village Manager or his designee shall meet 

with the employee and the Union Representative within ten (10) calendar days.  The Village 

Manager or his designee shall respond in writing within ten (10) calendar days from the date of 

the meeting. Any grievance not answered by the Village in the time limits provided above 

automatically advances to the next higher step of the grievance procedure.  Any grievance not 

pursued by the employee within the time limits above will be considered conclusively 

abandoned. 

Step 4: If a grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved in the course of the grievance 

procedure, the Union may request arbitration on behalf of the employee(s) no later than ten (10) 

calendar days after the Village Manager or his designee’s response is due in Step 3 by notifying 

the Village Manager or his designee in writing.  The parties to this Agreement will mutually 

agree, or attempt to agree, on an independent arbitrator.  If this cannot be done, then either party, 

or their representatives, shall request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a 

list of seven (7) arbitrators.  A copy of this request shall concurrently be mailed to the other 

party.  The parties may reject up to two (2) panels.  The parties shall select an arbitrator in 

accordance with the rules of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service.  The arbitration 

Page 167



27 
 

shall be conducted under the rules of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service within the 

limitations included in this Article.  Subject to the following, the arbitrator shall have the 

jurisdiction and authority to decide a grievance as defined in this Article. 

 It is contemplated that the Village and the Union may be able to agree in writing as to the 

statement of the matter to be arbitrated prior to a hearing, and if this be done, the arbitrator shall 

confine his decision to the particular matter thus specified, and devising a remedy should one be 

deemed appropriate.  In the event of the failure of the parties to so agree on a statement of the 

issue to be submitted, the arbitrator shall confine his consideration to the written statement of the 

grievances presented in Step 2 of the grievance procedure.  Copies of the award of the arbitrator, 

made in accordance with the jurisdictional authority under this Agreement, shall be furnished to 

both parties within thirty (30) days of a hearing and shall be final and binding upon both parties.  

The Village shall provide the hearing room.  The parties shall evenly split the cost of the 

impartial arbitrator.  Witnesses are subject to subpoena and if on duty, his appearance will be 

without loss of pay or benefits.  The parties desiring copies of the transcript of such arbitration 

shall bear that expense.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any employee 

from presenting his own grievance, up to, but not including a request for arbitration with the 

limitations in this agreement; however, the Union shall have the opportunity to be present at any 

meeting called for the resolution of grievances. 

Page 168



28 
 

ARTICLE 14 - LEGAL PROTECTION 

The Village agrees to provide liability insurance.  If the insurance carrier declines 

coverage, the Village shall not be obligated to provide defense but will indemnify all employees 

for those judgments levied against them so long as said judgments are within the obligations put 

on a municipal employer in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 768.28, Florida Statutes.  

However, the Village will in no way be responsible for the payment of punitive damages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 169



29 
 

ARTICLE 15 - HOLIDAYS 

15.1 The below-listed twelve (12) paid holidays shall be granted under the following 

conditions: 

January 1 New Year’s Day 
To Be Determined Martin Luther King Day 
To Be Determined Memorial Day 
July 4 Independence Day 
1st Monday of September Labor Day 
November 11 Veteran’s Day 
  Thanksgiving Day 
  Day after Thanksgiving Day 
December 25 Christmas Day 

 Three (3) Personal days Employee’s Choice with Department Approval 
 

15.2 Holiday falling on regularly scheduled work days: 

All Employees:  shall receive eight (8) hours holiday leave or double pay for each hour 

worked, at the employee’s option. 

15.3 Holiday falling on a scheduled day off: 

Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014: shall receive eight (8) hours 

holiday leave or double time and one-half pay for all hours worked on the holiday. 

 

Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014: no additional compensation. 

             15.4   Any member of the bargaining unit who is on - leave without pay shall be 

precluded from receiving compensation (in the form of pay or time) for any holiday.  

            15.5 Any personal days not used within the calendar year shall be forfeited. 

 

 

 

 

Page 170



30 
 

 

ARTICLE 16 - SICK LEAVE 

16.1 Sick leave shall be granted to employees for absences because of personal illness 

or physical disability resulting in the incapacity of the employee to perform the regular duties of 

his position and not arising from a service-connected injury or accident. Sick leave shall also be 

used for purposes of undergoing and recovery arising from medical, dental or optical treatments 

and examinations (elective examinations with prior Department approval).  Personal illness or 

physical disability resulting in the incapacity of the employee to perform the usual duties of his 

position and arising from a service-connected injury or accident, but only after all availability 

disability benefits offered under Workmen’s Compensation are exhausted, provided further that 

use of sick leave in this matter shall be at the employee’s request and is not mandatory. 

 

16.2 Sick leave is accrued bi-weekly.  Rate granted will depend on the shift employee 

works; totaling up to twelve (12) days per year.   

 
 

16.3 Sick leave Accumulation:  

 Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014: can accumulate sick 

leave hours with no cap  

Employees hired as a police officer after May 27, 2014: can accumulate up to a 

maximum of 960 hours. 

             16.4     Banked sick leave when employment ceases:  

 Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014: if over seven (7) years 

of employment with the Village, will be paid out only up to a maximum of 960 hours regardless 

Page 171



31 
 

of how many hours in their bank.  If under seven (7) years of service they will not be paid out on 

any banked time upon their departure of employment.  

 

 Employees hired as a police officer after May 27, 2014 :  if over seven (7) years 

of employment with the Village, will be paid out only up to a maximum of 480 hours at 50% of 

their straight time rate of pay regardless of how many hours in their bank.  If under seven (7) 

years of service or termination for cause, the employee will not be paid out on any banked time 

upon their departure of employment.  

 

            16.5      Annual cash out of sick leave:  

 Employees hired as police officer prior to May 27, 2014: employees with more 

than 400 hours of banked sick leave will be allowed to cash out up to a maximum of 80 hours of 

sick leave at their straight time rate of pay per fiscal year. The cash in request must be submitted 

to Human Resources no later than July 1st of the current fiscal year in order to be paid for said 

cash in request during the month of October and November of the following fiscal year.  

 

 Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014 : employees with more 

than 700 hours of banked sick leave will be allowed to cash out up to a maximum of 80 hours of 

sick leave at 50% of their rate of pay per fiscal year. The cash in request must be submitted to 

Human Resources no later than July 1st of the current fiscal year in order to be paid for said cash 

in request during the month of October and November of the following fiscal year. 

 

Page 172



32 
 

16.6 Sick leave requested by an employee may be verified by the employee’s 

supervisor.  The Chief of Police may require an employee utilizing sick leave 

to present a written doctor’s statement authenticating the necessity for the use 

of sick leave.  If the doctor’s statement is requested, the Village will be 

responsible for payment of any charge for such statement not covered by 

health insurance. Any employee on sick leave shall not be paid his holiday pay 

(double pay ie; 16 hours) for the a holiday that occurs while he is on sick 

leave. The employee will be paid for the straight holiday time only (ie; 8 

hours).  

Page 173



33 
 

ARTICLE 17 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

17.1 Employees covered by this agreement shall be entitled to bereavement leave with 

pay of up to five (5) work days in the event of death in the employee’s immediate family.  The 

amount of leave necessary for the employee to attend the funeral or handle matters related to the 

bereavement shall be determined by the Chief.  Proof of death may be required by the Chief. 

17.2 The immediate family shall be defined as wife, or husband, domestic partner, 

grandparents, parents, children, grandchildren, brothers, sister, fathers-in-law, and mothers-in-

law, or any other relative living in the immediate household. 

17.3 Bereavement leave shall not be charged to sick leave or annual leave. 

Page 174



34 
 

ARTICLE 18 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

18.1 Unpaid leave may be granted by the Village Manager for a period not to exceed 

six (6) calendar months to enable the employee to receive professional or technical training 

which will improve his work upon return to service, or because of the employee’s extended 

illness or non-job-related disability.  Maternity leave shall be treated the same as any other 

extended illness or non-job-related disability.  Unpaid leave may be granted by the Village 

Manager to a permanent employee for a period not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days for any 

other purpose, and may be renewed or extended for any reasonable purpose.  Said request must 

be made in writing with at least fifteen (15) days in advance of said leave and processed through 

the Chain of Command. 

18.2 An employee who is a member of the National Guard or the Military Reserve 

Forces of the United States and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend the 

prescribed training program or to perform other duties, shall be granted a leave of absence with 

pay as required by Florida Statutes.  Said employee must provide to the Chief of Police a copy of 

the orders issued by the Military. 

18.3 Any employee on a non-paid leave of absence will reimburse the Village for life 

and health insurance premium contributions or any other fringe benefit expense incurred on his 

behalf.  Any employee who is on a duly authorized paid leave of absence shall continue to 

maintain all benefits including seniority, longevity, health and time accrual benefits. . 

Page 175



35 
 

 
    ARTICLE 19 - VACATION TIME 

19.1 Upon employment with the Village, vacation leave will begin to accrue 

immediately and on a bi-weekly basis. If requested and at the Chief of Police’s ultimate 

discretion, an employee may be eligible to use up to Twenty Four (24) hours of vacation leave at 

the completion of six (6) months employment. After an employee’s probationary period (i.e., 

after one year) is over the employee will then be allowed to use vacation leave when requested 

and approved by a supervisor. If the employee is working other than an 8 hour shift the rate of 

accrual will change accordingly to coincide with a full days shift, the rate of accrual will also 

change when the employee reaches certain years of employment (for example, the rate will 

increase when employee when employee moves from 5 years to 6 years employment). See chart 

below for accrual rates per years of service for employees hired before ratification of this 

agreement:   

At year 1 up to 5 years  10 work days per year 

At 5 years and up to 15 years 15 work days per year 

At 15 years and over   20 work days per year 
 
        19.2  Employees hired after May 27, 2014 will not necessarily accrue the above 

amounts of time per their years of service. They will rather accrue at the above rates only up to 

the time their vacation bank reaches one hundred and twenty hours (120) of accrued time. At the 

point their bank reaches 120 hours, they will not continue to accrue time on a bi-weekly basis 

until they use vacation time enabling them to fall below the 120 hour cap.  

         19.2.1 Vacation leave must be requested and scheduled through the chain of command 

during submission of the shift bids. Vacation time requests will be approved once your shift bid 

is set.  i.e.  Once you bid your shift and your bid is set then your vacation request will be set but 

Page 176



36 
 

the vacation requests cannot be for a future shifts you have not bid yet. Only vacation requests 

that fall within the shift period you are bidding will be considered. Any open, unscheduled work 

days eligible for vacation leave throughout the calendar year (even after shift bid process) shall 

be requested through the chain of command with a minimum of five (5)  days’ notice on a first 

come first serve basis and shall be approved or denied based on coverage . Seniority will only be 

considered for these “unscheduled days” if there are two (2) requests with the same submittal 

date. The Chief has the discretion to approve vacation requests for future vacation extending 

beyond the current shift bid (ie vacation which needs advance booking- more than 6 months out).  

 
 
19.3  Annual carryover of vacation leave:  
 

Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014: will be eligible to 
accrue unlimited amount of vacation time.  

 
Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014: will only be allowed to 
accrue up to 120 hours of vacation time (see article 19.2).  

 

19.4 Banked vacation leave upon termination (either by resignation, voluntary or 
involuntary termination or death of employee):  

 

Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014: regardless of the total 

number or hours an employee has in their bank they shall only receive a payout of 

a maximum of two hundred and forty (240) hours of vacation time upon 

termination of employment. If the employee upon termination has less than two 

hundred and forty (240) hours in their vacation bank, they shall receive payout on 

their actual banked hours.   

Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014: regardless of the total 

number or hours an employee has in their bank they shall only receive a payout of 

Page 177



37 
 

a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) hours of vacation time upon 

termination of employment. If the employee upon termination has less than one 

hundred and twenty (120) hours in their vacation bank, shall just receive payout 

on their actual banked hours.   

 

19.5 Annual cash out of vacation leave: 

 Employees hired as police officers prior to May 27, 2014:: employees will be 

allowed to cash out up to a maximum of 80 hours of vacation leave at their straight time rate of 

pay per fiscal year. The cash in request must be submitted to Human Resources no later than July 

1st of the current fiscal year in order to be paid for said cash in request during the month of 

October and November of the following fiscal year.  

 Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014: employees will be 

allowed to cash out up to a maximum of 40 hours of vacation leave at their straight time rate of 

pay per fiscal year. The cash in request must be submitted to Human Resources no later than July 

1st of the current fiscal year in order to be paid for said cash in request during the month of 

October and November of the following fiscal year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 178



38 
 

ARTICLE 20 - EXTRA-DUTY POLICE EMPLOYMENT 

20.1 Authorization by the Chief of Police to perform extra-duty police employment 

and rates shall be prescribed per Section 104.1 of the Department's Policies and Procedures 

Manual. A copy of Section 104.1 shall be provided to an entity requesting extra duty assignment.  

20.2 The Village will furnish, a hand-held radio unit to an employee working approved 

extra-duty detail. 

20.3 Any employee who may be injured while acting in the scope of such employment 

shall be entitled to the same rights, privileges, benefits and workers’ compensation as if on duty 

provided that such extra-duty employment is authorized by the Chief of Police. 

20.4 Employment under the provisions of this Article shall not be considered as joint 

employment.  Hours worked as extra duty shall not be considered as hours worked for North Bay 

Village. 

           20.5     Officer’s compensation for off duty detail should be handled directly by the officer 

and the entity requesting detail.   All compensation shall follow Department policy. All off duty 

work shall be offered on a rotational basis via a documented list. 

Page 179



39 
 

ARTICLE 21 - INSURANCE BENEFITS 

21.1 The Village will provide major medical and health insurance benefits to the 

members of the bargaining unit.  The Village agrees to pay the entire amount of the premium for 

the employee coverage; and the Village will pay sixty percent (60%) of the cost for dependency 

coverage.  For all employees who are covered under the Village’s medical insurance plan, the 

Village will pay the employee four hundred dollars $400 per month for such employees to 

participate in their spouses or partners medical insurance. The employee upon making such 

request and each September or upon a spouses change in coverage status must provide Human 

Resources with a copy of the updated insurance card and proof of the actual cost of the medical 

insurance before they are considered eligible for reimbursement by the Village.   The Village 

shall provide a minimum of $150,000 life insurance coverage for each member of the bargaining 

unit during the term of employment. If during the term of employment, the insurable amount of 

the employee is reduced due to age, the Village will provide a supplement to the employee so 

make whole for  the total $150,000 either by obtaining another private company to insure the 

employee or if a private company cannot be obtained then the Village will fill the gap through 

self-insurance.   

21.2 The parties agree to continue to explore the needs for any changes of insurance 

carrier giving the employees the option of utilizing the major medical and health insurance 

benefits provided by the Village or through the Union;   the Village Manager’s decision on these 

issues shall be final. 

 

 

Page 180



40 
 

ARTICLE 22 - EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE 

22.1 The Village, in its efforts to encourage its bargaining unit members to acquire a 

greater knowledge of the more complex areas pertaining to law enforcement, agrees to bear the 

cost of tuition and tests for specialized educational courses to better equip the officers for the 

performance of the particular job and/or position in which they are employed.  Maximum 

limitation on reimbursement shall be three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) per individual per fiscal 

year, as follows: 

  Grade  % of Benefit Available 
  A  100% 
  B  80% 
  C  70% 
 

22.2 Every application for educational assistance shall be submitted on the form 

prescribed and attached hereto as Appendix B.  Each application is subject to the approval of the 

Chief of Police and the Village Manager prior to said course starting.  To qualify for this 

assistance, courses must be relevant to police work or be applicable to a relevant degree as 

defined by the State in the guidelines covering State educational incentives to police officers.  

22.3 Reimbursement as outlined in Subsection 1 (above) shall be made, provided the 

course has been successfully completed.  

22.4 Officers utilizing educational assistance must remain with the Village for a period 

of at least one year following completion of the reimbursed course, or said monies must be 

repaid to the Village (amount will be deducted from final pay). 

Page 181



41 
 

ARTICLE 23 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

23.1 Sick leave and compensatory leave in lieu of sick leave shall not count for the 

purpose of computing eligibility for overtime. The Chief of Police maintains the management 

right, at his exclusive discretion, to implement and/or discontinue a schedule of four (4) ten – 

(10) hour days, five (5) eight (8) hour days, and twelve (12) hour shifts for some or all officers, 

shifts and/or units.  The Union understands and agrees that such decision shall not be subject to 

grievance or arbitration or any other forum. 

         23.2 The Village has adopted a Section 207(k) plan, pursuant to the Fair Labor 

Standards Act, for members of the bargaining unit.   The usual work period for employees 

working 8 hour shifts or 10 hour shifts shall be eighty (80) hours in a fourteen (14) day work 

period, at the employee’s regular straight time rate of pay.  The usual work period for employees 

working twelve (12) hour shift, shall be eighty-four (84) hours in a (14) day period. If employee 

is working an 8 hour shift or a 10 hour shift, hours actually worked over 80 hours in a 14 work 

day period will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half the employees regular straight 

time rate of pay and if an employee is working a 12 hour shift, hours worked in excess of 84 in a 

14 day work period will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half the employees regular 

straight time rate of pay.  , If a shift change is necessary, no employee shall be forced to work a 

continuous shift.  Employees will be entitled to at least eight (8) hours off-duty before returning 

to work (with the exception of emergencies).  If an employee is on a ten (10) hour shift, he shall 

be entitled to at least ten (10) hours off duty before returning to work.  If an employee is on a 

twelve (12) hour shift, he shall be entitled to at least twelve (12) hours off-duty before returning 

to work. Whenever possible, at the Chief’s exclusive discretion, employees will be given ten (10) 

calendar days advance notice of any change in their hours of work. 

Page 182



42 
 

             23.3 When it is necessary for employees to appear at court, on off-duty time, 

employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours compensation at the rate of time and 

one-half of the employee’s straight time rate of pay regardless of the number of hours actually 

worked during the applicable fourteen (14) day period. You cannot have overlapping overtime 

pay within the same time frame including separate incidents. 

             23.4 When it is necessary for the Department to require employees to report to work, 

not on their assigned shift, the Village agrees to compensate the employees for a minimum of 

three (3) hours compensation at the rate of time and one-half of the employee’s straight time rate 

of pay regardless of the number of hours actually worked during the applicable fourteen (14) day 

period. 

          23.5 Employees may cash-in up to forty (40) hours annually previously accrued 

compensatory time and  up to (40) hours of Holiday banked time at the rate of pay in existence at 

the time the employee cashes out the leave.  The cash in request for holiday time must be 

submitted to Human Resources no later than July 1st of the current fiscal year in order to paid for 

said cash in request during the month of October and November of the following fiscal year. 

Employees will be paid for all unused previously accrued compensatory time upon termination 

(for whatever reason) from the Department. 

           23.6 Up to one hundred and forty four (144) hours may be placed in a compensatory 

leave bank by the employee. Compensatory time may be taken at any time provided the 

employee desiring to use compensatory time gives supervisory notice to the Chief of Police (or 

his designee) a minimum of forty eight (48) hours in advance of the start of the shift. The 

advance notice of 48 hours may be waived by the shift supervisor where the exchange will take 

place if no overtime is incurred. It will be the responsibility of the employee requesting the 

Page 183



43 
 

compensatory time to find a replacement (only when the time off causes a shift shortage) and 

provide the employee’s name to the supervisor receiving the request. The employee volunteering 

to work will make themselves available for the twenty four (24) hours prior to the beginning of 

the shift they are to cover in case they are not needed. It is the responsibility of the supervisor 

receiving the request for the time off to attempt to fill the position without the use of overtime. If 

the supervisor cannot fill the position, he will contact the officer who volunteered and confirm 

that they are needed. Nothing herein obligates the Department to utilize the services of the 

employee who volunteered to cover the shift if they are not needed. The request for 

compensatory time may be denied if sufficient personnel coverage is unavailable and the 

requesting employee cannot find a replacement.  

          23.7 Employees forced to holdover to cover another shift after their regular shift is 

done, will receive double time pay for each hour worked on the forced holdover shift. Double 

pay will only be paid in circumstances where the holdover is not voluntary but forced on the 

employee. Forced holdover will be applied on a rotational basis regardless of rank.  

         23.8 Employees hired as police officers after May 27, 2014  are not eligible to receive 

compensatory time.  

 

Page 184



44 
 

ARTICLE 24 - COMPENSATION 

24.1 During the term of this Collective Bargaining Agreement the following wage 

increases shall be implemented: 

24.2 LONGEVITY:  All permanent employees shall receive longevity according to the 

following schedule: 

At year 5 to year 8. $300/yr  

At year 8 to year 13. $500/yr  

At year 13 and each year over. $1000/yr.  

Longevity payments shall be made on an employee’s anniversary date and in a lump sum. 

24.4 PROMOTION:  In the event of promotion to Sergeant, the officer shall receive, 

Upon promotion to the rank of Sergeant, the officers new base pay rate shall start at the lowest 

pay step on the Sergeants pay plan; reflecting a minimum increase of 5% above the base rate as a 

police officer.  

24.5 Bargaining unit personnel assigned to full-time detective duties shall receive a  

five percent (5%) pay supplement with the exception of Lieutenants.  Bargaining unit personnel 

assigned to Field Training Supervisor (FTS) shall receive a five percent 5% pay supplement for 

the entire duration of the FTS assignment even on days that the his/her FTO is not on shift. 

Bargaining unit personnel assigned to the duties of Field Training Officer (FTO) shall receive a 

five percent (5%) pay supplement. FTS and FTO pay will continue as long as there is an officer 

being trained (i.e. if you are FTS or FTO you will get the 5% even if you are on vacation).   

Acting FTO will be assigned only when an officer in training and is present at work. Pay for 

Acting FTO will be a total of 1 hour of the officer’s hourly rate of pay at double time for the day 

of acting FTO assignment,  

Page 185



45 
 

24.6 Those appointed to the permanent rank of Lieutenant will receive merit based step 

increases per the Lieutenants pay step plan.  

Fiscal Year 2016-2017:  Employees covered under this agreement shall receive a 

three (3%) percent pay incentive effective the second pay period in October 2016. This pay 

incentive is provided in order to acknowledge the officers extra efforts in community policing 

and moving the department towards accreditation.   Employees who are not topped off in the pay 

plans for fiscal year 2016-2017 will be eligible (based upon a successful merit evaluation) to 

receive a step increase on their anniversary date.  An employee who receives a successful merit 

evaluation will move up one (1) step.  An employee who does not receive a successful merit 

evaluation will remain at his current step until the next year’s merit evaluation.  An employee 

who is topped out in his pay grade is not eligible for any further merit increases. 

Fiscal Year 2017-2018:  Employees covered under this agreement shall receive a 

four and a half (4.5%) percent pay incentive effective the second pay period in October 2017. 

This pay incentive is provided in order to acknowledge the officers extra efforts in community 

policing and moving the department towards accreditation.   Employees who are not topped off 

in the pay plans for fiscal year 2017-2018 will be eligible (based upon a successful merit 

evaluation) to receive a step increase on their anniversary date.  An employee who receives a 

successful merit evaluation will move up one (1) step.  An employee who does not receive a 

successful merit evaluation will remain at his current step until the next year’s merit evaluation.  

An employee who is topped out in his pay grade is not eligible for any further merit increases. 

Fiscal Year 2018-2019:  Employees covered under this agreement shall receive a 

four and a half (4.5%) percent pay incentive effective the second pay period in October 2018. 

This pay incentive is provided in order to acknowledge the officers extra efforts in community 

Page 186



46 
 

policing and moving the department towards accreditation.   Employees who are not topped off 

in the pay plans for fiscal year 2018-2019 will be eligible (based upon a successful merit 

evaluation) to receive a step increase on their anniversary date.  An employee who receives a 

successful merit evaluation will move up one (1) step.  An employee who does not receive a 

successful merit evaluation will remain at his current step until the next year’s merit evaluation.  

An employee who is topped out in his pay grade is not eligible for any further merit increases. 

 

SHIFT DIFFERENTIALS:   

Day Shift: 

7am- 3pm = no differential pay 

Afternoon Shift: 

3pm – 11pm= 2% differential pay 

Midnight Shift: 

11pm- 7am= 4 %differential pay 

 

24.7 All unit members who are regularly assigned to work the afternoon shift shall be 

paid an afternoon shift differential of - two percent (2%).   

All bargaining unit members who are regularly assigned to work the midnight shift, shall be paid 

a midnight shift differential of four percent (4%). The shift differential will follow the person 

regularly assigned to the shift not the shift. For example- if you are regularly assigned to work 

afternoon shift and you cover a day shift vacancy, you will receive your 2% differential pay for 

the actual hours worked on the day shift. If your regularly assigned schedule is to work day shift 

and you cover work a vacancy in the midnight shift, you will receive the 4% differential 

associated with the midnight shift for the actual hours worked on the midnight shift. An 

afternoon shift officer who works a mid-night shift will receive an additional 2% percent to equal 

the 4% that should be received for midnight work.  You will receive the differential pay for any 

hours worked on the shift.  

   

Page 187



47 
 

 

ARTICLE 25 - UNIFORMS, SAFETY AND EQUIPMENT 

25.1 All employees shall receive from the Village upon appointment, at no cost to the 

employee, a new uniform, which shall consist of the following: 

-Four (4) shirts to include two (2) class B uniform shirts and two (2) other short sleeve 
department approved shirts.  
 - Four (4) pairs of trousers to include two (2) long pants and (2) shorts -one (1) hat 
-badge and sew-on name tags 
-leather goods (nylon web style) and accessories to include 
-handcuffs and case, cartridge case and 
-shells, holster and four (4) keepers 
-one (1) windbreaker with zip-in liner 
-one (1) formal dress uniform (second year of Agreement) 

Work equipment and uniforms shall be replaced by the Village if damaged in the line of 

duty and shall be worn according to department policy.  Otherwise uniform shirts and pants will 

be replaced as needed due to wear and the worn equipment and uniforms shall be returned to the 

Department.  Each employee will be provided,  a total of $200 each October in order to purchase 

appropriate replacement footwear, which has been approved by the Police Chief. Employees who 

are required to wear non-issued clothing in the course of their job shall receive a clothing 

allotment of fifty ($50.00) dollars per month.  Additionally, said employees will be reimbursed 

for the cleaning of such clothing to a maximum of fifty dollars ($50.00) per month based upon 

the production of appropriate receipts. 

25.2 Employees who are required to wear uniforms in the course of their job shall have 

the uniforms cleaned at no cost to the employee, in accordance with current practice. 

25.3 Police personnel will be provided, at the Village’s expense, protective (“bullet-

proof”) vests. Police personnel shall be required to adhere to the departmental policy in wearing 

the vest. Each police vehicle will be equipped with a first aid employee safety kit containing two 

Page 188



48 
 

(2) pair of surgical gloves and two (2) disposable pocket resuscitation masks.  Such equipment 

will be replaced after use. 

25.4 The employer shall provide the replacement or repair cost of personal utilitarian 

equipment damaged or lost in the line of duty in accordance with the following schedule: 

prescription glasses/contacts  - full replacement/repair 

watches - $100.00 

wedding ring - $100.00 

non-prescription sunglasses - $50.00 

Cell phone                -  $100 (with proof of damage) 

Replacement/repair or reimbursement of the above items shall be limited to one incident 

per item per year. 

Page 189



49 
 

ARTICLE 26 - PHYSICAL EXAM & WORKERS COMP. BENEFITS 

26.1 Employees will receive an electrocardiogram, eye exam, and physical 

examination at least once every twenty-four (24) months, performed by a physician selected by 

the Village or when requested by the Village. Furthermore, a fitness for duty evaluation may be 

required at any time the Police Chief in concert with the Village Manager and Human Resource 

Director determine is necessary. A fitness for duty exam may include a medical, physical or 

psychological exam.  Scheduling of the above will be at the discretion of the Chief of Police, and 

the results will become part of the employee’s permanent record.  The Village will undertake the 

cost of the examination and will furnish the employee with a copy of the examination report.  

The employee will be required to undergo psychiatric examination if so ordered by the 

examination physician. 

26.2 In the event of an on-the-job injury to an employee, not as a result of negligence 

by the employee, such employee will be carried at full pay and benefits for a period not to 

exceed six (6) months unless extended by the Village Manager.  Daily benefits and the time lost 

as a result of the on-the-job injury will not be charged against any existing type of leave time.  

The Village Manager has the right to have employees examined by the Village physician of 

choice. 

26.3 Any employee injured on the job shall be paid the full eight (8) hours wage for the 

day of the accident if his treating physician advises that he should not return to work that day.  It 

is the employee’s immediate responsibility to forward to the Chief of Police (or his designee) the 

completed treating physician’s written advisement (DWC 25 report) immediately.  

26.4 All employees suffering on-the-job injuries shall comply with Chapter 440, 

Florida Statutes. 

Page 190



50 
 

26.5 Any employee who is able to work full duty after a job-related injury shall be 

returned to his former job classification once he is cleared for full duty.  

Page 191



51 
 

ARTICLE 27 - SENIORITY AND LAYOFF 

27.1 Seniority shall consist of continuous accumulated full time paid service with the 

Department.  Seniority shall be computed from the date of appointment to employee’s current 

rank.  Seniority shall accumulate during absences because of illness, injury, vacation, military 

leave or other authorized paid leave.1 

27.2 In the event of a layoff for any reason, employees shall be laid off in the inverse 

order of their seniority in their classification.  Any employee to be laid off who has advanced to 

his present classification from a lower classification in which he held a permanent appointment, 

shall be given a position in a lower classification in the same department.  His seniority in the 

lower classification shall be established according to the date of his permanent appointment to 

that classification.  Employees shall be called back from layoffs according to the seniority in the 

classification from which the employee was laid off.  No new employee shall be hired in any 

classification until all employees on lay-off status in that classification have had an opportunity 

to return to work (for which he is qualified).  Employees will be notified by registered mail to 

their address of home record and shall be given twenty-one (21) calendar days to return to work.  

An employee will be kept on the callback list for one (1) year, provided the employee passes all 

of the rehire provisions.  After this period, the Village will no longer be obligated to request that 

this employee be returned to the Village employment. 

 

                                                 
1 Appointment to the rank of corporal and lieutenant shall not interrupt the accrual of seniority in the rank promoted 
from i.e., officer promoted to corporal will continue to accrue officer seniority during the period of time when 
performing corporals’ duties. 

Page 192



52 
 

ARTICLE 28 - LIABILITY IN AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT 

In the event that a police employee is involved in an accident while lawfully operating a 

Village vehicle in the scope of his employment, the employee will not be required to pay for 

damage to the vehicle. If it is determined that the employee accident is a result of negligent 

driving on behalf of the employee, this may result in disciplinary action against the employee.  

Page 193



53 
 

ARTICLE 29 - DEPARTMENTAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 

It is agreed and understood that each employee and the Union will be furnished with an 

electronic copy of any departmental manual, which replaces, updates or supersedes the present 

manual containing the Department’s rules and regulations, within fifteen (15) working days 

before formal adoption. 

Page 194



54 
 

ARTICLE 30 - SAFETY STANDARDS 

 The Village shall take all reasonable steps to maintain all work areas in a clean 

and sanitary condition and will provide that its equipment and working conditions will 

not jeopardize the health or safety of employees. 

Page 195



55 
 

ARTICLE 31 - PREVAILING RIGHTS (PAST PRACTICE) 

All job benefits, privileges, and working conditions previously approved by the Village 

Commission by ordinance, or heretofore enjoyed by the employees which are not specifically 

provided for or abridged by this Agreement shall continue under conditions upon which they had 

previously been granted throughout the term of this Agreement; provided however, that this 

Article shall not be interpreted so as to supersede any of the other terms and provisions contained 

in this collective bargaining agreement. 

 

Page 196



56 
 

ARTICLE 32 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS & SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the Village reserves the 

exclusive right to control, manage and direct all of its operations and employees, to decide the 

scope of services to be performed, to terminate, demote, suspend or otherwise discipline for just 

cause, to determine matters bearing upon promotion, to determine hours of work and shift times, 

to establish Village and departmental policy, rules and regulations and procedures, and further to 

exercise all of the statutory public employer rights acknowledged in the Florida Public 

Employees Relations Act unless the exercise of such right is inconsistent with any express 

provision of this Agreement. 

Page 197



57 
 

ARTICLE 33 - SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYMENT 

The Village agrees that it will not use assigned or detailed members of the bargaining 

unit as substitute employees in a situation where there exists an employer-employee labor 

dispute between the Village and its employees, except where lives or property are in imminent 

danger. 

 

Page 198



58 
 

ARTICLE 34 - SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

Should any provision of this Agreement or any part thereof, be rendered or declared 

invalid by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted state or federal legislation, or by any 

decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, all other articles and sections of this Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. 

Page 199



59 
 

ARTICLE 35 - LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

35.1   The Village and the Union shall each name up to three (3) individuals who are 

employed by North Bay Village as members of the Labor-Management Committee. 

35.2 The Committee shall meet and confer on a quarterly basis.  Discussions shall 

concern problems of a general nature which may arise from time to time in the department but 

shall not constitute renegotiation of this Agreement.  There shall be no loss of pay or benefits for 

those members who are on duty time when a meeting occurs, provided they are one of the 

members identified in writing to the Village Manager by the start of each calendar year. 

Page 200



60 
 

ARTICLE 36 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

36.1 Each bargaining unit employee who retires on length of service or medical 

disability shall be issued a badge and identification card- both clearly marked “retired”. 

Additionally, an officer who retires will also receive his/her issued hand gun.  

36.2 The parties agree that the Village joined the Florida Retirement System (FRS), on 

the effective date in 2004, and that the FRS has replaced the Village’s prior defined contribution 

(the IRS 401-A plan) as of that date. The Village agrees to pay out the employee banks to the 

allowable max of FRS pension contribution at the time of the officer exiting employment with 

the Village. Currently,  the max allowed by FRS toward computing for pension benefits 

contribution is limited to five hundred (500) hours of vacation banked time.  

Page 201



61 
 

ARTICLE 37 - ALCOHOL AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 

37.1 The Village and the Union recognize that employee substance and alcohol abuse 

may have an adverse impact on Village government, the Department’s operations, the image of 

Village employees, and the general health, welfare and safety of the employees and the general 

public at large.  Therefore, the parties agree that the Department shall have the right and 

authority to require employees to submit to toxicology and alcohol testing designed to detect the 

presence of any controlled substance, narcotic drug, steroids, performance enhancing drugs or 

alcohol.  The Village may utilize urine, blood, and/or hair follicle samples for any of the testing 

performed pursuant to paragraphs 37.2, 37.3, and 37.4. 

37.2 The Village has the absolute right to randomly test any bargaining unit member 

for the existence of alcohol, illegal drugs, performance enhancing drugs or other controlled 

substances.  The selection of an employee for random testing shall be made by a scientifically 

valid method, such as a random number table, or a computer based random number generator 

that is matched with employees’ payroll identification numbers or other comparable 

identification number.  Under the selection process used, each employee shall have an equal 

chance of being tested each time selections are made. 

37.3 The Village has the absolute right to test any bargaining unit member for the 

existence of alcohol, illegal drugs, steroids, performance enhancing drugs or other controlled 

substances “post incident,” i.e., if the employee is involved in a vehicular accident that results in:  

(1) a fatality, (2) the accident is non-fatal but results in injuries which require the transportation 

of an injured person (could be officer him/herself) to a medical facility or (3) if there is 

significant property damage as a result of the accident . This testing shall be performed as soon 

as possible but no later than three (3) hours after the accident. 

Page 202



62 
 

37.4 In addition, the Village may require an employee to submit to such a test if the 

employee’s immediate supervisor and the Police Chief or his designee have a reasonable belief 

that the employee is under the influence of such substances, suffers from substance or alcohol 

abuse, or is in violation of the Village’s Personnel Rules, or Departmental Rules and Regulations 

regarding the use of such substances. Reasonable belief includes, but is not limited to, the 

following: 

a. Observable phenomena while at work, such as direct observation of drug 
use or the physical symptoms or manifestations of being under the 
influence of a drug, controlled substance or alcohol; 

b. Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work or a general 
deterioration in work performance; 

c. A report of an employee using drugs, controlled substances or alcohol, 
provided by a reliable and credible source;  

d. Evidence that an individual has tampered with a test administered under 
this Article during his employment with the Village; 

e. Information that an employee has caused, or contributed to, an accident 
while at work, or has suffered an injury on-the-job; or 

f. Evidence that an employee is using, consuming, possessing, soliciting, 
buying, selling or being under the influence of alcohol, drugs or controlled 
substances while at work, or has used or consumed drugs or controlled 
substances (unless prescribed by a physician) on or off duty, or has used or 
consumed alcohol on duty. 

37.5 It is understood by the parties that the aforementioned authority to require an 

employee to submit to such testing must be approved by the Chief, if available, or his designee 

within the Department or Village.  It is also understood and agreed that the tests conducted under 

this Article shall be administered in a purely employment context only as part of the Village’s 

legitimate inquiry into the use of any controlled substance, narcotic drug, steroids, performance 

enhancing drugs or alcohol by its employees. 

Page 203



63 
 

37.6 An employee required to submit to a mandatory test for the presence of alcohol, 

steroids, performance enhancing drugs or illegal drugs shall be entitled to have a Union or other 

employee representative present when the breath analysis is conducted or the urine specimen is 

obtained.  It is agreed and understood that the breath analysis test will not be delayed longer than 

one (1) hour. 

37.7 All tests shall be analyzed in medical laboratories mutually agreed to by the 

Village and the Union, using recognized technologies.  In the event an employee’s test results are 

positive, a second test, utilizing a comparable recognized testing method shall be conducted on 

the same specimen to verify the initial test results.  Copies of the test results shall be made 

available to the employee, upon the employee’s request, as soon as possible after the Human 

Resources Department receives the results of the testing from the laboratory.  Additionally, upon 

request, the employee shall be given a sample of the specimen tested. 

37.8 The results of such tests shall be handled as part of an Internal Affairs 

Investigation and are not to be made public unless required by law.  The taking of a breath 

analysis or urine specimen from an employee does not constitute an interrogation within the 

meaning of Section 112.532, etc., Florida Statutes, unless questions are asked at the time the test 

is conducted. 

37.9 The results of such tests may result in referral for rehabilitation or counseling or, 

where appropriate, disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with the 

applicable provisions of the Village Code, the Village Personnel Rules, and/or the Departmental 

Rules and Regulations.  The employee may grieve the discipline through the contract grievance 

procedure. 

Page 204



64 
 

37.10 The parties agree that any employee refusing to submit to toxicology, alcohol, 

steroid or performance enhancing drug testing conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

this Article may result in disciplinary action being taken against the employee up to and 

including dismissal. 

Page 205



65 
 

ARTICLE 38 – NO STRIKE PROVISION 

      38.1 The Union and the bargaining unit members shall have no right to engage in any 

strike. 

     38.2  In addition to the penalties set forth in Section 447.507, Florida Statutes, any and 

all employees who violate any provision of the law prohibiting strikes may be 

disciplined, up to and including discharge, by the Village. The only questions that may be 

raised in any proceeding (grievance, judicial or otherwise) contesting such action is 

whether the provision prohibiting strikes was violated by the employee to be discharged 

or otherwise disciplined.  

      38.3 The circuit courts of this State shall have jurisdiction to enforce the provisions of 

this Section by ex parte injunction and contempt proceedings, if necessary. This provision 

however, does not waive any other remedies, judicial or otherwise, that the Village is 

entitled to.  

Page 206



66 
 

ARTICLE 39 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

39.1 This Agreement shall be effective upon ratification by both parties and shall 

remain in full force and effect through and including September 30, 2019. 

39.2 Regarding negotiations for a successor agreement, the parties agree to meet no 

later than April 30, 2019 in order to exchange existing articles / new articles which the parties 

wish to discuss.  

39.3 Should negotiations for a successor agreement extend beyond September 30, 

2019, the provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a successor 

Agreement is ratified. 

FLORIDA STATE LODGE 
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE 

By:  _______________________________ 
         President 

Dated:  _______________, 20__ 

 NORTH BAY VILLAGE, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

By:  _______________________________ 
         Mayor 

Dated:  _______________, 20__ 

WITNESSED:   
Entered pursuant to Resolution No. ________    
 

 
By:  _______________________________ 

FOP Representative  

  
Attest: ____________________________ 
            Village Clerk 

 
By: _______________________________ 

Bargaining Team Member 

  
Approved: ________________________ 
                   Village Manager 

 
By: _______________________________ 
                Bargaining Team Member 

 Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

By: ______________________________ 
       Special Labor Counsel 

Dated:  _______________, 20__ 
 

Page 207



  

APPENDIX A 
 

STEP PAY PLAN 

 

 
FY 16-17 

 
OFFICERS (3% PAY ADJUSTMENT) 
 

 

STEP 

1 

STEP 

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

STEP 

7 

STEP 

8 

STEP 

9 

STEP 

10 

FY  

16-17 
(HOURLY) 

24.8970 26.6398 27.7053 28.8135 29.9660 31.1648 32.4113 33.7077 35.0562 36.4584 

 

SERGEANTS 
 

 

 

LIEUTENANTS 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

FY 

16-17 
(HOURLY) 

32.9633 34.6116 36.3422 38.1593 40.0673 42.0707 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

FY 

16-17 
(HOURLY) 

45.0320 46.8333 48.7066 

Page 208



  

FY 17-18 
 

OFFICERS (4.5% PAY ADJUSTMENT) 
 

 

STEP 

1 

STEP 

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

STEP 

7 

STEP 

8 

STEP 

9 

STEP 

10 

FY  

17-18 
(HOURLY) 

26.0173 27.8385 28.9520 30.1101 31.3144 32.5672 33.8698 35.2245 36.6337 38.0990 

 

SERGEANTS 
 

 

 

LIEUTENANTS 
 

 

 

 

FY 18-19 
 

OFFICERS (4.5% PAY ADJUSTMENT) 
 

 

STEP 

1 

STEP 

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

STEP 

7 

STEP 

8 

STEP 

9 

STEP 

10 

FY  

18-19 
(HOURLY) 

27.1880 29.0912 30.2548 31.4650 32.7235 34.0327 35.3939 36.8096 38.2822 39.8134 

 

SERGEANTS 
 

 

 

LIEUTENANTS 
 

 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

FY 

17-18 
(HOURLY) 

34.4466 36.1691 37.9775 39.8764 41.8703 43.9638 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

FY 

17-18 
(HOURLY) 

47.0584 48.9407 50.8983 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

STEP 

4 

STEP 

5 

STEP 

6 

FY 

18-19 
(HOURLY) 

35.9966 37.7967 39.6864 41.6708 43.7544 45.9421 

 

 

STEP  

1 

STEP  

2 

STEP 

3 

FY 

18-19 
(HOURLY) 

49.1760 51.1430 53.1887 

Page 209



5I

Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



   North Bay Village- Health Election / Payroll Deduction Form 
 

 

Employee Name: ________________________     Today’s Date: ____/____/____ 
 
HEALTH 

Benefits Option 1: AVMED (POS Plan 3410) 
 
(no referral needed) 

Option 2: AVMED (Open Access HMO) 
 
(no referral needed but must stay within AVMED 
Network) 

Office Copay (PCP/SPC) $10 / $10 per visit $15 / $35 per visit 
Other Copays (IP/OP/ER/UC) $0 /$0 / $75 /$40  $250 (per admission)/ $250 / $100 / $40 
 Labs/ Xray Diagnostics / 
Mayor Diagnostics 

$0 / $10 / 
 $25 

$0 / $10 /  
$25 

Deductible 
 (in network single / family) 
(out of network single / family) 
 

$0 / $0  (individual coverage / family) 
 
$500 / $1500  

$0 / $0  (individual coverage / family) 
 
NO OUT OF NETWORK ABILITY 

Coinsurance  100% 100% 
Pharmacy  $15/$30/$50 / $75 /50% $20/$40 /$60 / $75 / 50% 
Out of Pocket Maximum  
in network (single/family) 
 
out of network (single / family) 

$1,500 / 3,000 
 
 
$3,500 / $7,500 

$1,500 / 3,000 
 
 
NO OUT OF NETWORK ABILITY 
 

BI-WEEKLY DEDUCTIONS  
(PLEASE PLACE A CHECK 
MARK IN THE BOX OF 
THE PLAN YOU WILL LIKE 
TO CHOOSE) 

EMPLOYEE ONLY (NO DEDUCTION )        □ 
EMPLOYEE & SPOUSE ($146.91 bw)            □ 
EMPLOYEE & CHILD ($125.71 bw)               □ 
EMPLOYEE & FAMILY ($298.63 bw)            □ 
 

EMPLOYEE ONLY (NO DEDUCTION )        □ 
EMPLOYEE & SPOUSE ($135.63 bw)            □ 
EMPLOYEE & CHILD ($116.06 bw)               □ 
EMPLOYEE & FAMILY ($275.69 bw)            □ 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 216



 
DENTAL (UHC)           VISION (NHP) 

BI-WEEKLY DEDUCTIONS  
(PLEASE PLACE A CHECK 
MARK IN THE BOX OF 
THE PLAN YOU WILL LIKE 
TO CHOOSE) 

 
EMPLOYEE ONLY (NO DEDUCTION )                   □ 
EMPLOYEE & SPOUSE ($5.04 bw )                          □ 
EMPLOYEE & CHILD ($5.97 bw)                              □ 
EMPLOYEE & FAMILY ($11.80 bw)                         □ 
 

 
EMPLOYEE ONLY ($3.97 bw)                  □ 
EMPLOYEE & SPOUSE ($7.74 bw)          □ 
EMPLOYEE & CHILD ($8.14 bw)             □ 
EMPLOYEE & FAMILY ($11.32 bw)        □ 
 

 
I hereby authorize the above deductions until further notice. I understand that I will not be able to change my selection until open enrollment held in October of next year 
 
Employee Signature: _________________________________   Date: ____/_____/_____ 
 
SIGN ONLY IF WAIVING COVERAGE: I have been offered the above insurance coverage and I hereby waive my right to enroll at this time. I understand that by signing the below I will not 
be able to enroll until next year at open enrollment and could be subject to pre-existing status.  
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE: ______________________________ DATE: _____/_____/_______ 

Page 217



6A

Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



7A

Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



     Grandview Palace Condominium 
     7601 E. Treasure Drive 
     N. Bay Village, FL  33141  
     

 

    Caribbean Towers Condominium 
    7545 E. Treasure Drive 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 
     

 

    Treasure Island Elementary 
    C/O 1450 N.E. 2nd Avenue 
    Room 602 
    Miami, FL  33132 
     

    Bocados Ricos Corp 
    1880 Kennedy Causeway 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 

 

    Gonzalez Santiago 
    1886 Kennedy Causeway 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 
 

 

    DDB Investments Fortune 
    ATTN: Valeria Dahan 
    1300 Brickell Avenue 
    Miami, FL  33131 

     
    Sunshine Grocery 
    1900 Kennedy Causeway 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 
 
     

 

    Pizza D’Light 
    C/O Jairo Reyes 
    1865 Kennedy Cswy., #11-C 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 

 

    Mr. Greg Lambert 
    823 N.W. 57th Avenue 
    Ft. Lauderdale, FL  33309 
    (Re: 1886B Kennedy Cswy.) 

    Happy’s Store/Sports 
    1872 Kennedy Causeway 
    N. Bay Village, FL  33141 

    

    

     
     
     
 

     

     

     

     

     

Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



7B

Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



7C

Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Staff Report
Permit Application for Dock

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant: Holger Piening & Andrea Franke 

Site Address: 1700 South Treasure Drive 

Request: Permit for a dock, with a waiver to extend 
more than 25 feet from the bulkhead line, 
and a boat lift.

7D

Page 298



General Information 

 
Owner Holger Piening & Andrea Franke 

Applicant Address 
c/o Nicole Huesmann, D.A. 
Alhambra Circle, Suite 1200 
Coral Gables, Fl. 33134 

Site Address 1700 S Treasure Drive 
Contact Person Nicole Huesmann 
Contact Phone Number 305-858-0222 
E-mail Address njhuesmann@njhlaw.com 
Zoning District RS-2 
Use of Property Single Family Home 

 

General Description 
The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock at a residence in the RS-2 
zoning district. The proposed dock will extend 47 feet from the existing seawall into 
Biscayne Bay and will include a 24,000-pound capacity boat lift. 
 

Applicable Code Provisions 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 150.11 and 
specifically subsections (A) and (F).  

Section 150.11 reads as follows: 

(A) No person, firm, or corporation shall construct, reconstruct, or repair any docks, 
piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, similar structures of any kind more than 25 feet 
perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any waterway within the 
corporate limits of the Village. Provided however, if construction of a docking 
facility is prevented by the requirement of federal, state or preemptive local 
environmental laws, rules and regulations (laws) whereby in order to obtain a 
permit for construction of a docking facility, it is necessary to exceed the same 
more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline, the docking facility 
may be constructed such distance from the seawall or shoreline as may be 
required in order to comply with such laws by obtaining a waiver from the Village 
Commission in accordance with subsection (G), provided further, however the 
furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or shoreline shall not exceed 75 
feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward most line of the 
dock or pier but not including required rip-rap.  

Page 299



 
(B) Plans and specifications for construction, reconstruction, or repair of docks, piers, 

dolphins, wharfs, pilings, or similar structures shall comply with all provisions of 
the Village Code, shall be approved by the Village Manager, and shall be kept 
permanently in the records of the Village. Repair or reconstruction may be made 
in accordance with the original plans. 
  

(C) No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the 
Village unless the structure is set back at least 7½ feet from the lot line on each 
side; and the structure shall not exceed five feet above ground level, except a 
joint or "party" dock may be permitted on the property line if approved by the 
Village Commission.  
 

(D) No person, firm, or corporation shall build, maintain, extend, or make any 
structural alteration on any building, dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, 
seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or over the waters adjacent to Harbor 
Island, Treasurer Island, North Bay Island, and Cameo Island within the 
corporate limits of the Village, or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the 
waters without first obtaining a written permit to do so from the Village Manager.  
 

(E) Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section 
shall be made to the Village Manager in writing on forms provided therefore. The 
permit shall constitute an agreement by the applicant to comply with all 
conditions imposed upon granting of the permit. The application shall be 
accompanied by plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be 
done.  
 

(F) All applications for construction or structural alterations of any building, dock, 
pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or 
over the waters within the corporate limits of the Village shall require the approval 
of the Village Commission after a public hearing. During the public hearing the 
Village Commission shall consider safety and compatibility as criteria for 
approving the application.  
 

(G) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (F), if an applicant seeks a dock or 
pier length greater than 25 feet, the Village Commission shall additionally 
consider the following criteria to determine if a waiver shall be granted:  

(i) If Miami Dade Department of Environmental Management has required 
specific depth or location criteria; and  

(ii) If the Applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent 
from adjoining riparian property owners, and  

(iii) If the Village has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian 
property owners; and  

Page 300



(iv) Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

(H) The Village Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or 
impose conditions in the permit, pursuant to paragraph (F), or granting of a 
waiver, pursuant to paragraph (G), which it deems necessary to protect the 
waterways of the Village in accordance with the public safety and the general 
welfare. The requirement of approval by the Village Commission shall not include 
applications for repair of existing structures.  
 

(I) A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi judicial and follow 
the hearing procedures provided in Section 29.02 of the Code.  
 

(J) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed or apply to prohibiting repair 
or reconstruction or otherwise limiting those structures which exist at the time of 
adoption of this section, however, the provisions of subsections (D) and (E) 
above shall be complied with. 

The location of boats, docks and piers is also governed by Section 152.059, most 
specifically subsection (B) which reads as follows:  

“(B) No docks, piers, mooring posts, or combinations thereof, may project more than 25 
feet from any bulkhead line, nor extend nearer than seven and one-half feet to any 
adjacent property line. A waiver may be granted by the Village Commission 
pursuant to Section 150.11(A), upon completion of a marine survey demonstrating 
the minimum distances from the seawall necessary to meet the minimum depth 
requirements, approved by DERM, and completed by a licensed professional 
surveyor and mapper registered to practice in the State of Florida.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 301



Staff Comments 

The dock will be located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are 
met.  

However, the dock length is greater than 25 feet from the seawall. Section 150.11(A) 
prohibits docks lengths greater than 25 feet unless a waiver is granted by the Village 
Commission. Section 150.11(G) provides several criteria for the Commission to 
consider when reviewing waiver requests (see above code language). 

The applicant has provided a biological assessment sketch stating the presence of 
near-shore marine resources, a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to 
the East, and emails from DERM verifying their approval contingent upon agreement 
from the applicant that boats will be moored only in a bow-in configuration. 

The adjacent property owner to the West will not issue a letter of consent for this 
project, citing the fact that the variances received for the construction of the applicant’s 
single family residence contributed to his loss of scenic view, and that approval of this 
54-foot dock would further obstruct his view. Due to this issue, DERM did request a 
modification of the plans (to remove a westward mooring pile), and the applicant has 
complied with this request. Staff is not aware whether this modification is more 
compatible for the neighbor to the west. 

See attached for all above mentioned documents and correspondence. 

Additionally, the applicant has not provided any documentation regarding the condition 
of the seawall at the subject site; and in email correspondence with the applicant’s 
representative, it was stated that they are aware that seawall repairs will be necessary. 

Based on the materials presented by the applicant, and the preapproval by DERM, the 
proposed structures are in compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 
152.059 and 150.11. The proposed dock is safe and compatible. However, the seawall 
should be repaired before the dock permit is issued. 
  

Page 302



Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this dock application and approval of the waiver to 
construct a dock greater than 25 feet in length, with the following conditions being met 
prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
 
1. Submittal of a seawall repair inspection report, indicating that all necessary repairs 

have been made and that the seawall is in good condition. 
 
2. Verification of the 5-foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 

to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

 
4.  Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 

prior to commencement of construction. 
 
5.  Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 

new development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be 
issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and 
outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to any 
previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

 
6.  Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way 

create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in 
a violation of federal or state law. 

 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
September 7, 2016 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, September 13, 2016 
 
Attachments: Dock Plans Provided by Applicant 
 Emails from Miami-Dade DERM 
 Letters from Adjacent Property Owners 
 Biological Assessment Sketch 
 Statement from Applicant Confirming Agreement of Bow-in Mooring  

Page 303



 
 
 
 

Page 304



James, 
 
The permit CLI-2014-0247 is ready to issue pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. Structural and zoning approvals from North Bay Village. 
2. A permit fee in the amount of $1,945.00. 
3. A statement from the property owner confirming that any vessel moored in either slip will be 

limited to bow-in mooring only. 
4. A letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the east. 

 
DERM is able to verify the SAJ-42 and issue on behalf of FDEP for this scope of work. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Regards, 
 
Emily Goodwin, Biologist II 
Coastal and Wetlands Resources Section 
Division of Environmental Resources Management (DERM) 
Miami Dade County Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources 
701 N.W. 1st Court - 6th Floor -Miami, FL 33136  
(305)372-6931 – Phone  (305)372-6479 - Fax 
www.miamidade.gov 
goodwe@miamidade.gov 
  

Page 305



From: Goodwin, Emily (RER)  
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:37 PM 
To: 'Nicole Huesmann' 
Cc: Jamesjamesmjr@aol.com 
Subject: RE: Boat Dock Piening-Franke - 1700 S Traesure Drive - Description of Boats 
 
James and Nicole, 
 
After coordinating internally regarding the configuration, we have decided we are willing to proceed 
with this configuration without a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the west 
provided the most waterward mooring pile currently located 52’ waterward of the seawall is removed 
from the scope of work to minimize the exceedance beyond the D-5 boundary. 
 
James- with this pile removed from the preliminarily approved set, we’ll be able to proceed with these 
plans. The permit is being drafted and while I’ll follow up with a finalized list of pending items ASAP, the 
pending submittals will include structural and zoning approvals from the City, the permit fee of 
$1,945.00, a letter of consent from the adjacent property owner to the east, and the statement from the 
property owner confirming that any vessel moored in either slip will be limited to bow-in mooring only. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Regards, 
 
Emily Goodwin, Biologist II 
Coastal and Wetlands Resources Section 
Division of Environmental Resources Management (DERM) 
Miami Dade County Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources 
701 N.W. 1st Court - 6th Floor -Miami, FL 33136  
(305)372-6931 – Phone  (305)372-6479 - Fax 
www.miamidade.gov 
goodwe@miamidade.gov 

 
  

Page 306

mailto:Jamesjamesmjr@aol.com
http://www.miamidade.gov/
mailto:goodwe@miamidade.gov


 

 
 

Page 307



 

Page 308



-----Original Message----- 
From: Paul Norris [mailto:pnorris@med.miami.edu] 
Sent: Thu 9/1/2016 2:01 PM 
To: Connie Leon-Kreps 
Subject: Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
 
 
Hi, Mayor, This is Dr Norris, we met over the weekend. I am writing on a matter regarding my 
neighbor at 1700 s treasure dr . He is asking for a variance on his dock which will significantly 
block my eastern view. ( his variance on his house has already blocked a considerable part of my 
view ) I believe the hearing is scheduled for this month however I will be out of town this month 
until the 26th and I want to be present for the hearing on this important matter. Can the hearing 
on this matter be scheduled for a date that I will be in town? 
 
 

Page 309

mailto:pnorris@med.miami.edu


 

Page 310



 
 

Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



 RESOLUTION NO.  _____________ 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
NEW DOCK AT 1700 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE, NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA; AND GRANTING A WAIVER PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 150.10(G) OF THE VILLAGE CODE TO PERMIT 
THE DOCK TO EXTEND BEYOND THE 25 FEET LIMIT; 
PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 WHEREAS, Holger Piening and  Andrea Franke, has requested a Building Permit to 

construct a new dock, which will extend 47 feet from the existing seawall into Biscayne Bay, at 

his residence, 1700 South Treasure Drive, Treasure Island, in the RS-2 Zoning District, North Bay 

Village, Florida; and 

 WHEREAS, Sections 150.11(C)(D) and (F) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances 

require all applications for construction of docks to be approved by the Village Commission; and. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, a public hearing 

by the Village Commission was noticed for Tuesday, September 13, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. at Village 

Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and all interested 

parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village Commission; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Recitals.  
 

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.  
 

Section 2. Findings. 
 

In accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, the Village Commission, having 
considered the testimony and evidence in the record presented by all parties, finds that the boatlifts 
are safe and environmentally compatible   
 

Page 327



Section 3. Grant. 
 

In accordance with Section 150.11(A) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances, approval is 
granted to construct a new dock, which will extend 47 feet from the existing seawall into Biscayne 
Bay, at 1700 South Treasure Drive, in accordance with the Site Plan submitted to the Village 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
Section 4. Conditions. 
 
Approval is granted with the condition that the following items are met prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit: 
 
1. Submittal of a seawall repair inspection report, indicating that all necessary repairs have been 
made and that the seawall is in good condition.  
 
2. Verification of the 5-foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance.  
 
3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited to, 
compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction.  
 
4. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official prior to 
commencement of construction.  
 
5. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be issued for the property 
until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the 
property (including fees related to any previous development proposal applications on the 
property), have been paid in full.  
 
6. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way create a right 
on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 
liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a building permit if the applicant fails to obtain 
requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes 
action that results in a violation of federal or state law. 
 
Section 5. Appeal. 

 
In accordance with Section 152.104 of the Village Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property 
owner, may appeal the decision of the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the 
Circuit Court of Miami-Dade County, Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 328



Section 6. Violation of Terms and Conditions. 
 
Failure to adhere to the terms and conditions contained in this Resolution in Section 4 shall be 
considered a violation of this Resolution and persons found violating the conditions shall be 
subject to the penalties prescribed by the Village Code, including but not limited to the revocation 
of any of the approval(s) granted in this Resolution.   
 
The Applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all other applicable 
requirements of the Village Code before it may commence construction or operation, and that the 
foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the Village at any time upon a 
determination that the Applicant is in non-compliance with the Village Code. 

 
Section 7. Effective Date.   
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
The motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by ____________, seconded by 
_______________. 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  ___________     
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez  ___________  
Commissioner Richard Chervony ___________  
Commissioner Andreana Jackson ___________  
Commissioner Eddie Lim  ___________  

 
    PASSED and ADOPTED this 10th day of May 2016. 

 
____________________________ 
MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

        
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 
North Bay Village Resolution: Construction of New Dock-1720 South Treasure Drive –May 10, 2016. 

Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Staff Report
Permit Application for Dock

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant: Dock & Marine Construction, 

 Glen Larson 

Site Address: 7700 Miami View Drive 

Request: Permit for a dock, with a waiver to extend 
more than 25 feet from the bulkhead line, 
and a boat lift.

7E

Page 333



General Information 

 
Owner Miami View Properties, LLC 
Applicant Address 752 NE 79th St. Miami, Fl. 33138 
Site Address 7700 Miami View Drive 
Contact Person Glen Larson 
Contact Phone Number 305-751-9911 
E-mail Address glarson@dockandmarine.net 
Zoning District RS-1 
Use of Property Single Family Home 

 

General Description 
The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock and boat lift at a residence 
in the RS-1 zoning district. The proposed structures will extend 54 feet from the existing 
seawall into Biscayne Bay and will include a 20,000-pound capacity boat lift. A permit 
was issued for the repair of the seawall at this property in the Fall of 2014. Since that 
time, the permit has been extended and expired. The Village building department does 
not have any record of a final inspection report for the seawall repairs. 

Applicable Code Provisions 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 150.11 and 
specifically subsections (A) and (F).  

Section 150.11 reads as follows: 

(A) No person, firm, or corporation shall construct, reconstruct, or repair any docks, 
piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, similar structures of any kind more than 25 feet 
perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any waterway within the 
corporate limits of the Village. Provided however, if construction of a docking 
facility is prevented by the requirement of federal, state or preemptive local 
environmental laws, rules and regulations (laws) whereby in order to obtain a 
permit for construction of a docking facility, it is necessary to exceed the same 
more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline, the docking facility 
may be constructed such distance from the seawall or shoreline as may be 
required in order to comply with such laws by obtaining a waiver from the Village 
Commission in accordance with subsection (G), provided further, however the 
furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or shoreline shall not exceed 75 
feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward most line of the 
dock or pier but not including required rip-rap.  

Page 334



 
(B) Plans and specifications for construction, reconstruction, or repair of docks, piers, 

dolphins, wharfs, pilings, or similar structures shall comply with all provisions of 
the Village Code, shall be approved by the Village Manager, and shall be kept 
permanently in the records of the Village. Repair or reconstruction may be made 
in accordance with the original plans. 
  

(C) No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the 
Village unless the structure is set back at least 7½ feet from the lot line on each 
side; and the structure shall not exceed five feet above ground level, except a 
joint or "party" dock may be permitted on the property line if approved by the 
Village Commission.  
 

(D) No person, firm, or corporation shall build, maintain, extend, or make any 
structural alteration on any building, dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, 
seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or over the waters adjacent to Harbor 
Island, Treasurer Island, North Bay Island, and Cameo Island within the 
corporate limits of the Village, or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the 
waters without first obtaining a written permit to do so from the Village Manager.  
 

(E) Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section 
shall be made to the Village Manager in writing on forms provided therefore. The 
permit shall constitute an agreement by the applicant to comply with all 
conditions imposed upon granting of the permit. The application shall be 
accompanied by plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be 
done.  
 

(F) All applications for construction or structural alterations of any building, dock, 
pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure in, upon, or 
over the waters within the corporate limits of the Village shall require the approval 
of the Village Commission after a public hearing. During the public hearing the 
Village Commission shall consider safety and compatibility as criteria for 
approving the application.  
 

(G) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (F), if an applicant seeks a dock or 
pier length greater than 25 feet, the Village Commission shall additionally 
consider the following criteria to determine if a waiver shall be granted:  

(i) If Miami Dade Department of Environmental Management has required 
specific depth or location criteria; and  

(ii) If the Applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent 
from adjoining riparian property owners, and  

(iii) If the Village has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian 
property owners; and  

Page 335



(iv) Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

(H) The Village Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or 
impose conditions in the permit, pursuant to paragraph (F), or granting of a 
waiver, pursuant to paragraph (G), which it deems necessary to protect the 
waterways of the Village in accordance with the public safety and the general 
welfare. The requirement of approval by the Village Commission shall not include 
applications for repair of existing structures.  
 

(I) A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi judicial and follow 
the hearing procedures provided in Section 29.02 of the Code.  
 

(J) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed or apply to prohibiting repair 
or reconstruction or otherwise limiting those structures which exist at the time of 
adoption of this section, however, the provisions of subsections (D) and (E) 
above shall be complied with. 

The location of boats, docks and piers is also governed by Section 152.059, most 
specifically subsection (B) which reads as follows:  

“(B) No docks, piers, mooring posts, or combinations thereof, may project more than 25 
feet from any bulkhead line, nor extend nearer than seven and one-half feet to any 
adjacent property line. A waiver may be granted by the Village Commission 
pursuant to Section 150.11(A), upon completion of a marine survey demonstrating 
the minimum distances from the seawall necessary to meet the minimum depth 
requirements, approved by DERM, and completed by a licensed professional 
surveyor and mapper registered to practice in the State of Florida.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 336



Staff Comments 

The dock will be located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are 
met.  

However, the proposed dock length is greater than 25 feet from the seawall. Section 
150.11(A) prohibits docks lengths greater than 25 feet unless a waiver is granted by the 
Village Commission. Section 150.11(G) provides several criteria for the Commission to 
consider when reviewing waiver requests (see above code language). 

The applicant has provided a DERM completeness summary letter, a biological 
assessment sketch stating the presence of marine resources, and a letter of consent 
from both of the adjacent property owners.  

In the completeness summary letter, Miami-Dade DERM has stated that they can 
approve the dock if letters of consent are provided from the adjacent property owners. 
The applicant has provided letters of consent from the adjacent property owners. See 
attached for all above mentioned documents. 

A building permit for seawall repairs was issued for this property in Fall of 2014. 
However, at the time of this report, that permit was expired and the Village building 
department had not received a request for a final inspection to verify that the repairs 
were completed. 

Based on the materials presented by the applicant, the proposed structures are in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 152.059 and 150.11. The 
proposed dock is safe and compatible. However, the seawall should be repaired before 
the dock permit is issued. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 337



Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of this dock application and approval of the waiver to 
construct a dock greater than 25 feet in length, with the following conditions being met 
prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
 
1. Submittal of a seawall repair inspection report, indicating that all necessary repairs 

have been made and that the seawall is in good condition. 
 
2. Verification of the 5-foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 

to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

 
4.  Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 

prior to commencement of construction. 
 
5.  Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no 

new development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be 
issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and 
outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees related to any 
previous development proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

 
6.  Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way 

create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in 
a violation of federal or state law. 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
August 31, 2016 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, September 13, 2016 
 
Attachments: Dock Plans Provided by Applicant 
 Miami-Dade DERM Completeness Summary Letter 
 Letters of Consent from Adjacent Property Owners 
 Biological Assessment Sketch  

Page 338



 

Page 339



 

Page 340



 

Page 341



 

Page 342



 
 
 

Page 343



 
 
 
 
 

Page 344



 

Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



 RESOLUTION NO.  _____________ 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, GRANTING A WAIVER, PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 150.11(G) OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A DOCK WITH A BOATLIFT AT 
7700 MIAMI VIEW DRIVE, WHICH WILL EXTEND BEYOND 
THE 25 FOOT LIMIT; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR 
GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 WHEREAS, Glen Larson, of Dock & Marine Construction, on behalf of Miami View 

Properties, LLC, has requested a Building Permit to construct a new dock and boatlift at 1700 
South Treasure Drive, Treasure Island, in the S-2 Zoning District,  North Bay Village, Florida; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 150.11(A) of the Village Code, docks are to be 

constructed no more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any waterway 
within the corporate limits of the Village, unless such construction is necessary based on federal, 
state, or local laws; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the structures will extend 54 feet from the existing seawall into Biscayne 

Bay; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Department of Regulatory and Economic Resources (DERM) has granted 

preliminary approval of the dock and boatlift; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 150.11(G) authorizes the Village Commission to consider the 

approval of docks greater than 25 feet upon the following determination: 
 
 1. If Miami-Dade Department of Environmental Management has required specific  

  depth or location criteria; and 
 2. If the applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent from  

  adjoining riparian property owners; and 
 3. if the Village has received any letter(s) of objection form adjoining riparian  

  property owners; and  
 4. Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 
 
 WHEREAS, Sections 150.11(C)(D) and (F) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances 

require all applications for construction of docks and boatlifts to be approved by the Village 
Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, a public hearing 

by the Village Commission was noticed for Tuesday, September 13, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. at Village 
Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and all interested 
parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village Commission; and  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 355



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Recitals.  

 
The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.  

 
Section 2. Findings. 

 
In accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, the Village Commission, having 
considered the testimony and evidence in the record presented by all parties, finds that the dock 
and the boatlift are safe and environmentally compatible   
 
Section 3. Grant. 

 
In accordance with Section 150.11(G) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances, a waiver is 
granted to construct a dock and a boatlift, which structures will extend 54 feet from the existing 
seawall into Biscayne Bay. 

 
Section 4. Conditions. 
 
Approval is granted with the condition that the following items are met prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit: 
 
1. Submittal of a seawall repair inspection report indicating that all necessary repairs have been             
made and that the seawall is in good condition. 
 
2. Verification of the 5-foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance.  
 
3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited to, 
compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 
construction.  
 
4. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official prior to 
commencement of construction.  
 
5. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be issued for the property 
until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the 
property (including fees related to any previous development proposal applications on the 
property), have been paid in full.  
 
6. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way create a right 
on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 
liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a building permit if the applicant fails to obtain 
requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes 
action that results in a violation of federal or state law. 
 
 
 
 

Page 356



Section 5. Appeal. 
 
In accordance with Section 152.104 of the Village Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property 
owner, may appeal the decision of the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the 
Circuit Court of Miami-Dade County, Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure. 
 
Section 6. Violation of Terms and Conditions. 
 
Failure to adhere to the terms and conditions contained in this Resolution in Section 4 shall be 
considered a violation of this Resolution and persons found violating the conditions shall be 
subject to the penalties prescribed by the Village Code, including but not limited to the revocation 
of any of the approval(s) granted in this Resolution.   
 
The Applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all other applicable 
requirements of the Village Code before it may commence construction or operation, and that the 
foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the Village at any time upon a 
determination that the Applicant is in non-compliance with the Village Code. 

 
Section 7. Effective Date.   
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
The motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by ____________, seconded by 
_______________. 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  ___________     
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez  ___________  
Commissioner Richard Chervony ___________  
Commissioner Andreana Jackson ___________  
Commissioner Eddie Lim  ___________  

 
    PASSED and ADOPTED this 10th day of May 2016. 

 
____________________________ 
MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

        
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 
North Bay Village Resolution: Construction of New Dock-7700 Miami View Drive –Construction of  New Dock and Boatlift 

Page 357



TREASURE ISLAND PARKING OPTIONS 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

1. Eliminate landscaped bulb-outs that would allow for parking
a. Approximately 30 spaces at an estimated $4,500 each
b. Total Estimated Cost:   $135,000
c. Oak Trees may have to be re-located at Village expense

2. Feasibility of taking property via Eminent Domain
a. The Village can take property for a public purpose
b. A Quick Take can be done immediately and final price determined in court – Village

cannot back out.
c. A Slow Take process can be initiated and the Village can back out if the price is not

acceptable
d. An Eminent Domain attorney would have to be engaged
e. Eminent Domain to included use for profit (retail/housing/etc.) can possibly trigger

Bert J. Harris Act litigation.
3. Feasibility of utilizing TIES Parking for the public

a. Manager met with Iraida Mendez-cartaya, School Board Administration, on August 15,
2016 to discuss the feasibility of utilizing school parking during the evening hours.
Meeting was encouraging and followed up by e-mail making formal request from the
Manager on August 16, 2016.

b. Manager received an e-mail from Iraida Mendez-cartaya on August 16, 2016, wherein
she stated that a meeting will be scheduled with the school to discuss possible
options.

9B

Page 358



HARBOR ISLAND PARKING OPTIONS 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

 

1.  Eliminate landscaped swales in front of Eloquence.   
a. Approximately 34 spaces can be created at estimated cost of $2,000 each  
b. Total Estimated Cost:  $68,000 
c. Possible legal challenges since Village required landscaped swales as part of Site Plan 

approval 
d. Palm trees may have to be re-located at Village expense. 

2. Eliminate landscaped swales in front of 360  
a. Parking cannot be re-installed on the curved portions – will not meet current county 

code.  
b. A few spots may be possible along East Drive 
c. Possible legal challenges since Village required landscaped swales as part of Site Plan 

approval  
3. Convert Vogel Park to a surface parking lot 

a. Approximately 67 spaces can be created at an estimated cost of $6,000 each 
b. Total Estimated Cost:  $402,000  

4. Convert Vogel Park to a 4-Level Parking Garage 
a. Approximately 67 spaces per floor at an estimated cost of $24,500 each for a total of 

268 spaces 
b. Total Estimated Cost:  $6,566,000 
c. Estimated Cost to place a park on top of the parking garage:  an additional $1 million 

5. Establish designated Scooter/Motorcycle Parking Areas 
a. 5 areas with 4 stalls per area have been installed on East Drive 
b. 2 areas with 4 stalls per area have been installed on West Drive 
c. These areas potentially free up 21 parking spots for cars, but all are not utilized. 

6. Night parking in front of Garbage/Trash Dumpsters – from 6:00pm till 7:00am 
a. 5 spots installed on East Drive 
b. 2 spots installed on West Drive 

7. Removal of Bulb-outs on East and West Drive 
a. Virtually no parking spaces are gained in that bulb outs were places where there were 

existing public works infrastructure and/or fire hydrants. 
8. Feasibility of taking property via Eminent Domain 

a. The Village can take property for a public purpose 
b. A Quick Take can be done immediately and final price is determined in court – Village 

cannot back out. 
c. A Slow Take process can be initiated and the Village can back out if the price is not 

acceptable 
d. An Eminent Domain attorney would have to be engaged 

Page 359



e. Eminent Domain with use for profit can possibly trigger Bert J. Harris Act litigation. 
 

9. Feasibility of purchasing/joint venturing with owners of old Sakura property 
a. Manager conversed with owner of property in June of 2016.  Both NBV purchasing the 

property and joint-venturing were discussed.  At the moment, the owner is not sure if 
they are really interested in either one.  Current plans call for them to eventually 
develop the property.  He stated that he would like to know what the Village is willing 
to offer to outright purchase.  Suggest obtaining an appraisal if the Commission wants 
to pursue. 

b. Joint Venture – not interested in a pure joint venture, but willing to discuss adding 
public parking in exchange for additional height and density. 

 
 

Page 360



9E

Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



9F

Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

TO  

THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

1. Village’s Land Development Code Special Commission Meeting:
Request to set a Special Commission Meeting on Thursday, October 13th or Tuesday,
October 18th, 2016 for Review and Action by the Commission on the proposed changes
to the Village’s Land Development Code – as requested by the Village’s Planning and
Zoning Consultant firm, LaRue Planning & Management Services, Inc.  Meeting is
anticipated to take approximately two hours.

2. Grant Writer’s Report
Grants Report by LaKeesha Morris

______________________________________ 
Frank K. Rollason, Village Manager 

13

Page 433



To:    North Bay Village Mayor & Village Commission 
From:   LaKeesha Morris, MSW 
Date Submitted: September 9, 2016 
Reporting Period:  July 1 – August 31, 2016 

Grants Submitted this Reporting Period: 

1. South Florida Health Foundation
a. Date Submitted:  July 29, 2016
b. Project Title:  Baywalk/Boardwalk Plan and Design
c. Note: LaKeesha requested $20,000 to assist with the development of a plan and design

for the Baywalk/Boardwalk.  If approved, this funding will provide match funding for the
potential $100,000 grant award that the Village is seeking from the Florida Inland
Navigation District.

2. 2016 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant
a. Date Submitted:  August 30, 2016
b. Project Title:  North Bay Village Automated Electronic Defibrillator (AED) Project
c. Note:  Funding in the amount of $2,457 was requested to continue the Village’s

endeavors to install a lifesaving AED machine in each of the Village’s Police Cruisers.
Funding will allow the Village to purchase two (2) machines.

Grants “Under Construction”/”For Consideration” 

No Grants are pending at this time. 

Grant Reporting/Implementation Activities 
This section contains information on current grants for which LaKeesha provided reporting or 
help with implementation this reporting period. 

• Bullet Proof Vest Program:  LaKeesha worked with the members of the Police
Department and Finance Department to close out the Bullet Proof Vest Program Grant.
The Village received $5,160.87 in funding to purchase up to eighteen (18) vests.  The final
report has been submitted to the Department of Justice and is currently under review.

13A

Page 434



 

• Department of Environmental Protection:  LaKeesha has worked in collaboration with 
Rodney to develop and submit the scope of work for the Stormwater Improvement 
Project that has been partially funded through a $200,000 legislative appropriation.  The 
final contract is still pending. 
 

Other Activities 
This section contains information on special initiatives for which LaKeesha provided support 
this reporting period.     
 

 

• Florida Inland Navigation District (FIND) WAP Grant – On Friday, July 22, 2016, the FIND 
Board of Commissioners approved the Village to move forward for consideration of 
funding.  The Village applied for a grant in the amount of $100,000 Boardwalk Planning 
and Design Project.  Final approval will be determined by September 30, 2016.  
 

• US Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)– TIES Dental Program – The 
Village has received an unofficial update from Borinquen Medical Center regarding the 
$350,000 grant that was awarded to Borinquen.  A portion of this grant is intended to re-
establish the Dental Program at Treasure Island Elementary School.  Borinquen is still in 
the planning phase of the project and is identifying qualified key personnel.   

Page 435



15A

Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



15B

Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



MONTHLY STAT 
REPORTS 







NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                     
CODE UNIT                                                                                                                                          

MONTHLY TOTALS FOR JULY 2016  

DESCRIPTION 
NORTH 

BAY 
ISLAND 

HARBOR 
ISLAND 

TREASURE 
ISLAND TOTALS 

SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OBSTRUCTED     5 5 
LANDSCAPING NOT MAINTAINED 3   3 6 
SIGN IN DISREPAIR/ILLEGAL SIGN 2   6 8 
DUMPING/LITTER 1 1 3 5 
TRASH/RECYCLE CANS VIOLATION 4   2 6 
TRASH/RUBBISH/DEBRIS 2   2 4 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE VIOLATION 3 3 3 9 
ILLEGAL USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 1 1   2 
PERMIT VIOLATIONS/ILLEGAL WORK 5 9 16 30 
ROAD DEBRIS REMOVED     3 3 
ILLEGAL BUSINESS 6   9 15 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLE VIOLATION     1 1 
ILLEGAL FISHING 1 4   5 
HEALTH HAZARD   2 2 4 
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY INSPECTION 1   1 2 
ZONING/PERMIT/PLAN REVIEW   1 4 5 
LIEN SEARCH   1 3 4 
STOP WORK ORDER ISSUED/POSTING 1 4   5 
S.T.V.R. VIOLATIONS 14   13 27 
OTHER     3 3 
TOTAL 44 26 79 149 
Phone Calls 19 20 50 89 
Meetings 9 12 21 42 
Initial Inspections 27 21 43 91 
Re-inspections 47 63 46 156 
Complaints Received 1 5 10 16 
Case Closed 6 7 10 23 
Verbal Warnings Issued 9 5 15 29 
Written Warnings Issued 25 4 21 50 
Citation Issued/Fines Charged 2 8 13 23 

 


	9-13-2016 Village Commission Meeting Agenda
	2A1 - Constitution Week Proclamation
	2A2 - Childhood Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation
	2A3 - Blood Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation
	2B1 - Treasure Island Elementary School
	5A - 7525 East Treasure Drive Special Master Resolution
	5B - National Joint Powers Alliance Resolution
	5C - Plastic Bags Florida Statue Resolution
	5D - Solar Power Resolution
	5E - 79th Street Causeway FDOT Turf & Landscape Resolution
	5F - E-Citation System Resolution
	5G - Biscayne Bay Coastal Wetlands Resolution
	5H - (FOP) Fraternal Order of Police Agreement
	5I - Health Insurance Services
	6A - Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity Change Efforts Ordinance
	7A - 7601 East Treasure Drive Boat Lift
	7B - 7601 East Treausure Drive Boat Lift
	7C - 7601 East Treasure Drive Boat Lift
	7D - 1700 South Treasure Drive Boat Lift
	7E - 7700 Miami View Drive Boat Lift
	9B - Treasure/Harbor Island Parking
	9E - Safer People, Safer Streets
	9F - Citizen's Crime Watch Awards Dinner
	13 - September 2016 Village Manager's Report
	13A - Grant Writer's Report
	15A - July 14, 2016 Special Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	15B - July 12, 2016 Village Commission Meeting Minutes



